
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, June 22, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 
City Hall Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of June 8, 2015  MOTION Pg. 31 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
6A. City Manager’s Report (Agenda Item) MOTION Pg. 2 
6B. FOIA Policy, Summary, and Fee Schedule (Agenda Item) Pg. 43 
6C. Springbrook East Association Request (Agenda Item)  Pg. 55 
6D. 5017 Third Street Sale Instruments & Resident Letter (Agenda Item) Pg. 56 
6F. Tax Foreclosure List and Maps (Agenda Items)  Pg. 62 
6G. AFSCME Wage Addendum (Agenda Item) Pg. 68 
6H. Supervisors Wage Addendum (Agenda Item)  Pg. 69 
6I. POLC Wage Addendum (Agenda Item)  Pg. 70 
6J. Bristol & Miller Road Change Orders With Work Area Maps (Agenda Item) Pg. 71 
6K. Dye Road Auction Proposal & Maps (Agenda Item) Pg. 75 
6L. MERS Annual Actuarial Valuation Report Pg. 89 
6M. SDM Liquor License Application Notice Pg. 113 
6N. Bench Donation Letter and Image (Agenda Item)  Pg. 121 
6O. Consumers Energy Notice Pg. 123 
6P. Detroit Water Authority News Article Pg. 125 
6Q. Flint Area Narcotics Group May Report Pg. 127 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. FOIA Policy and Fee Schedule RESO Pg. 13 
8B. Elms Park Bench Donation RESO Pg. 14 
8C. Street Project Change Order (Bristol Road) RESO Pg. 14 
8D. Street Project Change Order (Miller Road) RESO Pg. 15 
8E. Fireworks Ordinance  RESO Pg. 16 
6F. Springbrook East Lot Proceeds  RESO Pg. 21 
6G. Dye Road Lot Sale Options RESO Pg. 23 
6H. 5017 Third Street Sale Instruments RESO Pg. 24 
8I. County Tax Reverted Properties Acquisition RESO Pg. 24 
8J. AFSCME Unit Wage establishment for Fiscal Year 2016  RESO Pg. 26 
8K. Supervisors Unit Wage establishment for Fiscal Year 2016 RESO Pg. 27 
8L. POLC Unit Wage establishment for Fiscal Year 2016 RESO Pg. 27 
8M. City Manager Affirmation of Time Employed RESO Pg. 28 
8N. Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2016 RESO Pg. 28 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

City Council Packet 1 June 22, 2015



 
City of Swartz Creek 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
Regular Council Meeting of Monday, June 22, 2015 - 7:00 P.M. 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE:   June 17, 2015 
 

ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 
 
 RACEWAY STATUS (No Change of Status) 

The raceway has dropped their appeal for 2014, but they have filed for 2015. This is 
great news! Monies that the downtown development authority was encumbering with 
the intention of refunding can now be counted as unrestricted revenues. I suspect the 
strategy is revolving around the marketing of the track, and this will be resolved upon 
sale. For more information pertaining to the appeal, please see prior meeting packets.  
 
Concerning the marketing, there is not much happening as far as we can tell. We held 
off on rezoning because the owner wanted to do some research and work with us on a 
plan, but that simply has not happened. Obviously, we should work with them to the 
extent that they are willing. However, as we move forward with the master plan, I think 
it is clear that we cannot wait for them to come to the table to do what is in the interest 
of the community.  
 

 DOWNTOWN PARKING LOTS (No Change of Status) 
All improvements are complete. We are now closing the grants administratively.  

 
 STREETS (See Individual Category) 

 
 MORRISH ROAD CLASSIFICATION-BRIDGE CAPACITY (No Change of Status) 

Morrish Road has been submitted for classification as a “minor arterial” from a 
“major collector”.  The MDOT is reviewing this and should respond before August. 
 

 MILLER ROAD RESURFACING PROJECT (Update-Agenda Item) 
Crews are onsite and are working. The Tallmadge to Dye Road section is 
substantially complete. Crews are beginning traffic control of the Elms to Morrish 
Road section as I write this. 
 
Change Order #1 
 
In related news, we have been attempting to ascertain the owner of the ‘cuts’ in 
front of the GM facility for generations. With the GM relationship being relatively 
close last year because of the 2014 appeal and renovation, we tried to have GM 
work with us on the issue once again. We have gotten nowhere.  
 
As some on council may recall, these areas were to be resurfaced in tandem with 
Bristol Road nearly a decade ago. The lack of ownership evidence resulted in their 

City Council Packet 2 June 22, 2015



exclusion because MDOT wanted to ensure control. With work occurring on Miller 
Road, we feel the time is now or never to do the work with or without MDOT 
participation.  
 
Concerning ownership, we have one parcel map that shows the cuts and center 
traffic island as GM property, and one (county produced map) that indicates this is 
public right of way. With the knowledge that GM isn’t likely to claim or admit 
ownership, I think the city should act now to affirm ownership and do the work.  
 
Since these cuts enable general public access and the city has been maintaining 
them with patching material for many years now, this is not really a stretch. I am 
confident we are NOT making a trespass and we ARE doing the right thing. Based 
on time constraints with operations of the milling machines on the east side, we 
made the administrative decision to mill off the failed asphalt on June 11. This was 
an administratively approvable expense of $1,240.98. GM was notified of the 
decision to pursue this and has not objected. 
 
We have a contract change order to pave these sections with 1.5” of new asphalt. 
That price is $10,827.96, which is very reasonable in our opinion. Based on the 
circumstances, this cost will be borne entirely by the city with no additional 
participation from the MDOT. I prepared a resolution to make this happen. I think 
that if we don’t act now we risk paying a lot more down the road or not seeing the 
work done at all. I believe we need to put the potential GM ownership claim behind 
us and proceed with the understanding that these are public streets as indicated in 
the county map. 
 
Change Order #2 
 
There is a small section of the right turn only lane on Miller Road that is not within 
the project scope. This section is for west bound traffic on the north side of Miller 
Road that was recently (~6 years ago) expanded to enable right turns into 
businesses from Elms Road to Kroger. A map is included to illustrate what these 
words probably do not. Due to its location and superior condition, it is not to be 
repaired under the current contract. 
 
However, since we won’t be back doing work on Miller for the foreseeable future, we 
want to take advantage of the traffic control and mobilization that is in place. There 
is no sense waiting five years and creating an entirely separate scope, bid, and 
contractual project. To do so will have added costs and will create an unnecessary 
traffic interruption.  
 
With that said, staff is proposing another change order. We can mill and resurface 
the area mapped for $4,800.15. While the pavement does have some life left in it, I 
think the benefits outweigh the costs to do this now.  
 

 20 YEAR STREET PLAN (No Change of Status) 
At this point, we await action by the State of Michigan. The initial proposal release 
by the Speaker of the House appeared really bad. Pardon my lack of 
professionalism, but there is not much about it that would have been functional or 

City Council Packet 3 June 22, 2015



beneficial to our community. I have included an article. Note that we are a non-
partisan city, and I do not opine on this matter in a partisan fashion. There is not a 
proposal out there, irrespective of party affiliation, which appears to benefit our 
community. 
 
See the May 11 report for prior details. 
 

 2015 STREET BIDS-SCRAP TIRE GRANT (No Change of Status) 
The city is moving forward with engineering of the intersections of Winston and 
Miller, as well as Fairchild and Miller.  We expect this work to be done after school 
releases in 2016. 
 

 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (No Change of Status) 

The city is moving forward with relining of portions of the Worchester Drive sewer 
line and inspection of sections of Seymour, Greenleaf, Durwood, Valleyview, 
Birchcrest, Chesterfield, and Chelmsford as approved at the January 26th meeting. 
The scope of work is estimated to cost $146,320. However, there may be some 
portions of the project that will require a change order for the purposes of doing a 
partial excavation where lining is not practical. I will be back with more details. 
 

 KWA (Update) 
The KWA water pipeline held a dedication ceremony on June 17th at their proposed 
water treatment station near Columbiaville.  They are still ahead of schedule and 
under budget.  
 

 STORM SEWER (No Change of Status) 
This draft storm water agreement that was presented to the council last month is 
now in final form, and the county is requesting its approval. The agreement enables 
limited cooperation with the county to perform specific functions related to the 
Phase II Stormwater Regulations. This is done for a pro-rated fee, estimated to be 
$4,200 for this year.  Staff will take a closer look at terms and be back with a 
recommendation. 
 

 WATER LOSS (No Change of Status) 
We will continue to monitor the situation. 
 

 WATER RATES (Update) 
We are still expecting big increases this year from Genesee County, stemming from 
a 16% increase from the Detroit Water and Sewer Authority.  However, the county 
has not made the rate or time for implementation official. Tom expects this before 
the end of July. In related news. The Great Lakes Water Authority is now controlling 
the suburban assets of DWSD. This could definitely impact us. I will keep the 
council informed. An article is attached related to this. 

 
 PERSONNEL:  POLICIES & PROCEDURES (Update) 

A committee has been appointed to review the handbook. Once the attorney’s office 
gives it a look, we will start the review process. I expect an update from Mr. Gildner at 
our meeting. 

City Council Packet 4 June 22, 2015



 
 4438 MORRISH ROAD (Update) 

The DDA would like to hold a workshop to discuss the future of this site and some of 
the other areas in downtown. They envision an informal gathering of the planning 
commission, city council, DDA board, and public wherein ideas and concerns can be 
put forth. I will work on setting this up 
 
Background on this issue is included in the April 13, 2015 report.              
 

 SHARED SERVICES, POLICE DEPARTMENTS (No Change of Status) 
There is a possibility that costs relating to the merger, including legal fees and other 
expenses, may be covered by a third party grant. The city and township presented the 
initiative to a few funding interests on May 26, and the feedback was very positive.  I 
will keep the council informed. We expect to begin drafting a working agreement for 
joint services after the beginning of the new fiscal year. 

 
 SPRINGBROOK EAST & HERITAGE VACANT LOTS (Update-Agenda Item) 

Following are issues pending for the three Associations: 
 

SPRINGBROOK COLONY SPRINGBROOK EAST HERITAGE VILLAGE 

No outstanding issues No outstanding issues Seek solution for 4 vacant lots 
owned by city. 

 
This matter is now before the city council for a decision.  The Springbrook East 
Condominium Association has expressed an interest in the proceeds of the lot sales. 
This interest is based upon prior resolutions by the city council that express an 
intention to allow such proceeds to offset some of the assessed street costs related to 
the development failure and subsequently incurred by homeowners of the association.  
 
Our auditors indicate that we need to restrict these funds now before the end of the 
fiscal year. This means we need a decision before June 30th.  
 
The city has sold six of the twelve lots, and I expect that the others will sell within a 
year. The city has $2,535.50 into each lot sold. Total proceeds will total $105,168.50 
for all twelve lots, leaving $74,742.50 unencumbered by previous inputs. This is 71.1% 
of total sales. 
 
It certainly appears that there was a prior intent to enable the association to capture 
proceeds to offset their assessment. Because the association did not express an 
interest in the lots in the fall of 2013, this did not happen and the city went through the 
process of seeking proposals instead. I believe their interest is still valid, but this is 
ultimately up to the city council, with no objective legal obligation. I have drafted a 
resolution in the affirmative to enable this fund restriction and payment. 

 
 MEIJER COMMUNITY DONATION (No Change of Status) 

I have contacted Meijer, and they definitely wish to have a public event to 
commemorate their contribution to the community.  Perhaps a recognition of their 
donation along the Veteran’s walk on Fortino Drive would be appropriate during 
Memorial Day.   

 
 WINCHESTER WOODS LOTS (Update) 

City Council Packet 5 June 22, 2015



The planning commission is considering this issue as they amend the master plan.  It 
appears that the planned addition of some asphalt millings to the streets will be cost 
prohibitive. We may still need to spend some time and money on these streets. 
Since this is a platted subdivision with public streets, the city is in a position to 
provide access to the lots by owners for maintenance. 
 
Looking at the problem through a larger lens, we need a drainage and infrastructure 
solution for the entire plat. With more lots available through tax foreclosure, this may 
enable the city to have more control over what improvements occur and how they 
are paid for. The more lots the city controls, the more options we have for making 
improvements, providing drainage, and recouping costs. See Tax Reverted 
Properties Acquisition under New Business. 
 
The original report is included in the April 13, 2015 report. 
 

 NEWSLETTER (No Change of Status) 
The next edition of our community newsletter is expected to be distributed in October. 
Let me know if you wish to supply content or desire to see specific information covered 
in this edition.  
 

 MEDICAL MARIJUANA MORATORIUM (No Change of Status) 
The council placed a moratorium on medical marijuana dispensaries and growing 
facilities, effective April 23, 2015. This is a 180 day moratorium that is set to expire at 
the end of October. Among other reasons, the moratorium was put in place to better 
prepare for pending state legislation that would dramatically alter the playing field.  
 
The planning commission will be considering this issue. If legislation is not passed 
soon, we should consider amending the ordinance based upon draft versions or other 
options in lieu of moratoriums.   
 

 RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTIONS (No Change of Status) 
We are very close to having a final version of this ordinance, along with the 
administrative forms and procedures. Since, there was not any comment on the draft 
ordinance and supporting documentation at the first meeting in April, it appears we will 
be ready for approval as soon as the attorney signs off on it.  
 
We are taking a closer look at the “crime free lease addendum” that is used in the state 
and is being considered by Grand Blanc. This was brought to our attention during a 
Small Cities meeting. Take a look. A synopsis follows: 
 

The Crime Free Lease Addendum does not require eviction of a tenant for one 
criminal incident.  The addendum provides the rental property owner the tool and 
ability to deal with a problem if the owner chooses or needs to.  The addendum 
was developed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is used 
by housing authorities.  Evictions based on this concept were upheld by the US 
Supreme Court in 2002 (see Oakland Housing Authority v. Rucker and Department 
of Housing and Urban Development v. Rucker).  

 
 K9 UNIT (Update) 

City Council Packet 6 June 22, 2015



Donations have been coming in strong. The police department may look to place an 
order for a replacement in July or August.  
 

 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT UPDATES (Update-Agenda Item) 
There have been changes to the state Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) which 
outlines a number of new requirements for local governments (Public Act 563 of 2014).  
 
The changes do compel us to act before July 1, 2015. We updated policies, the 
summary, and the required fees we provide to the public. The changes should not 
impact business in any significant way. 
 
I have included the set of policies that staff has created. I have made some changes 
based on councilmember feedback. A resolution to enable these policies is attached. 
 

 5017 THIRD STREET (Update-Agenda Item) 
We finally have a set of sale instruments to consider. I believe these do everything the 
planning commission and city council set out to do. As required by charter, the council 
can approve the sale at our meeting, but we must then wait for a 30 day inspection 
period to expire before giving final approval to the sale.  
 
Another letter has been received by an area property owner regarding an interest. The 
council is able to consider any and all offers before final execution. The planning 
commission did consider this proposal and felt a sale to the adjacent properties would 
be better for the neighborhood in the long run. 
 

 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (Update)  
 

 MONTHLY REPORTS & UPDATES (Update) 
The May Flint Area Narcotics Report is included.  
 

 CONSUMERS ENERGY (Update) 
There is a notice for a June 30, 2015 hearing regarding the biennial review and 
approval of their Renewable Energy Plan.  
 

 MERS ANNUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORT (Update) 
We have the annual report from the Municipal Employees Retirement System 
included in the packet.  MERS handles retirement portfolios for all eligible defined 
benefit employees/retirees.  
 
This report is bleak. Investments are soft, even for the last calendar year, and they 
still include the market fall of 2008 as part of the “smoothing period”. This means 
that we are not as well funded as we used to be, and their projections indicate this 
will get worse before it gets better. Page 10 of 24 briefly outlines how much our 
liability could grow in a few years.  
 
The solution? The city has regularly and wisely contributed additional amounts 
above those required by MERS requests in order to ensure that retirements are 
solvent and future payments don’t overwhelm regular payroll. It would be great to be 
100% funded, but we can’t make that happen overnight. However, we have funds 

City Council Packet 7 June 22, 2015



budgeted that can go to offset this doom and gloom scenario. We did not make 
these payments throughout the year at regular intervals with payroll. We avoided 
this past practice because we wanted to take a conservative approach to budgeting 
and make sure we were not digging a hole due to some unforeseen problem.  
 
Now that we are at the end of the fiscal year, we are looking to contribute about 
$100,000, spread among all funds, to the three units that are impacted. Again, I 
credit our relatively strong position concerning liabilities to the city’s past practice of 
making additional contributions, and I don’t want to see that practice go away and 
leave this or some future council with massive annual liabilities that force 
undesirable cuts.  
 
Note that two of the three units are closed to new members (AFSCME & 
Supervisors), with two active employees within the AFSCME group. The supervisors 
group contains only retirees. At any rate, expect to see payment to MERS related to 
ensuring these assets remain healthy.  
 

 SMD LIQOUR LICENSE APPLICATION (Update) 
There is a request to allow a Specially Designated Merchant liquor license at 9061 
Miller Road, Suite15 (commonly known as Smokers Palace). I have attached the 
state notice and the state description of this license type.  Simply put, this license 
enables ‘party store’ type retail sales such as that observed at 7-11 or Rite Aid 
across the street. 
 
This IS a permitted use by right in the General Business Zoning District, which 
applies to this business. Furthermore, the state is very clear that the local 
municipality does NOT have formal say in approving or denying this license. 
However, they request input that may be considered. I have forwarded this to the 
police department for review and have released it to the Swartz Creek View as well. 
Comments from the city council members and public will be forwarded to the LCC, 
as would any formal resolution of the council.  
 

 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (No Change of Status) 

The planning commission met on June 2nd to continue work on the master plan.  
They reviewed and revised the first four chapters. Big changes are not expected so 
the commission will likely have minor amendments completed in a draft for public 
review and comment by fall.  
 
The commission also made recommendations concerning the offer to purchase two 
Dye Road properties that the city owns as well as the potential purchase of some 
tax reverted properties under control of the county treasurer. These issues are 
covered below. Lastly, a few new points of business were brought up, including 
discussion of the fence ordinance and the performance of Family Farm and Home, 
specifically the outdoor storage. The commission will take a look at the fence 
ordinance to ascertain potential amendments to make screening of corner lots a bit 
easier. The Family Farm and Home issue is also covered below. 
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (Update) 

City Council Packet 8 June 22, 2015



The DDA met on June 11th to revisit their budget and a potential boundary 
amendment.  They made no changes to the budget and appear satisfied to amend 
only those sections of the development and tax increment financing plans 
necessary to implement the boundary change. 
 
Concerning the development of city-owned property on Fortino Drive, the DDA is 
looking to set up a workshop that would include the planning commission, DDA, city 
council, and general public. The purpose would be to come to explore future 
ownership and use of this and similar sites. I will keep the council updated. 
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (No Change of Status) 
Nothing to report 
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (Update-Agenda Item) 
The park board met on June 3rd. They had a number of guests, including an Eagle 
Scout candidate. There are two proposed donations for Elms Park. One is for a 
bench from the Beta Sigma Phi sorority, and one is for an orienteering course. I 
have information related to the bench donation for this meeting and I expect to have 
the orienteering course presented for city council approval at the July 13 meeting. 
There was also a noted concern about weekend amplifier use at Elms Park that 
may be a subject of future meetings.  
 
Their next meeting will be September 2nd. 
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW  (No Change of Status) 
Nothing to report. 
 

NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 

 FIREWORKS ORDINANCE DRAFT (Discussion) 
I have made changes to the ordinance that reflect a more restrictive set of rules.  The 
statute enables regulation of consumer fireworks, including during holidays, the day 
preceding and the day after.  Because of applicable population thresholds, we can limit 
use of such fireworks between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. on such days. 
 
The ordinance is included in resolution form. Because of the risk of injury and the 
previously recognized impact on residential neighborhoods, I have drafted this as an 
emergency ordinance, to be in effect prior to the 4th of July.  
 

 FISCAL YEAR 2016 MEETING SCHEDULE (Resolution) 
The meeting schedule for the 2016 fiscal year is included in a resolution. Let me know if 
you find any conflicts or require any amendments.  
 

 DYE ROAD PROPERTY SALE (Resolution) 
I looked into the disposal option of the Dye Road properties via auction. A company 
that performed another local auction will provide for marketing and an online auction 
service for 6% of the sale value. I suspect this is worth it considering the added 
exposure that will be received. Since the standard commission for non-auctioned sale 

City Council Packet 9 June 22, 2015



on lower value real estate is ~6%, this certainly has face validity as a competitive 
option.  
 
Anecdotally, I have heard positive things about the auction exposure and participation 
this group was able to drum up. I have included the terms and conditions which, while 
extensive, appear benign. I say we go for it. 

 
 WAGE OPENERS FOR ALL GROUPS (Resolution) 

I have been working with the three collective bargaining groups that represent city 
employees (Police Officers Labor Council; American Federation of State, County, and 
Municipal Employees; the Swartz Creek Supervisors Association). All groups have 
agreed to a 2% increase, with some variations as outlined in the attached addendums. 
The POLC addendum contains a provision for additional one-time compensation should 
the merger occur, as well as a provision to open the next contract should the merger be 
voted down. There is also a variation within the Supervisors Association whereby the 
compensation of the Police Lieutenant is increased to $59,500. 
 
As the only employee not covered by one of these agreements, I insist that my salary 
remain unchanged.  
 
Note that wages were increased an additional 1% last year, above that amount fixed in 
each bargaining agreement. The 2% raises shall be applied to the resulting, higher 
wage. This will explain any discrepancy in the printed FY2015 wage and the resulting 
wages. 
 

 CITY MANAGER YEARS OF SERVICE DEFINITION (Resolution) 
I am requesting that the city council affirm my full time employment as contributing time 
towards my contract as it relates to earned vacation. This would make me a five year 
employee as of October 2014.  
 
As the city council is aware, my service with the city as a full time employee goes back 
prior to my hiring as the city manager, effective in January of 2014.  While I have been 
employed by the city as far back as 1999, I was not working in full time capacity until 
the summer of 2006.  I left the city in September of 2010. 
 
Based upon practices common to seniority and the definition of my vested time 
according to the Municipal Employees Retirement System of Michigan, I am confident 
that I qualify for leave time available to a five year employee. However, I wish to make 
this benefit interpretation transparent to the city council, so I have drafted a resolution 
to make such a determination part of the official record.  
 

 TAX REVERTED PROPERTIES  
There are a number of properties facing tax foreclosure. A list is attached that was sent 
to the city by the county treasurer. Notice is short, but the city has the opportunity to 
take title of these properties by making a payment in the amount shown, plus current 
year taxes. The idea is then to perform blight removal and make improvements as 
needed before returning the lots to the private sector. Note that the city cannot retain 
“profit” from the sale of these lots, meaning any additional sale cost above our 
investment shall go to Genesee County. 

City Council Packet 10 June 22, 2015



 
Procedurally, the city needs to inform the county of the intent to purchase one or more 
properties by July 10, 2015, making this regular meeting our only shot at formalizing a 
resolution.  
 
The planning commission reviewed this list and the attached maps at their last meeting. 
They recommended procurement of the vacant lots in Winchester Woods (for the 
purpose of planning, controlling, and providing for necessary public improvements 
identified in the vicinity, specifically drainage), procurement of the vacant lots in 
Heritage Village (for the purpose of ensuring collection of the special assessment), and 
procurement of the abandoned gas station on Holland Drive (for the purpose of 
eliminating the blight (possibly including environmental remediation) and providing for 
public parking or another economic development project).  
 
After conversations with the county treasurer’s office, it appears that the acquisition of 
the Heritage lots is not needed to achieve our objective. The first auction requires that 
the minimum bid be made on the lots as a single bundle, ensuring collection of the 
special assessment and future common ownership. If the lots do not sell at the auction, 
the city will have another shot at acquiring these with fewer costs and restrictions later 
on through the Land Bank. Since the city cannot “profit” from the sale of lots acquired 
through this process, there is virtually no risk to having the Heritage properties go to 
auction. 
 
The objectives for 5012 Holland and the lots in the Woods stand as very viable, and the 
county has affirmed that dollars spent to remove blight, remediate, and add 
infrastructure can be added to the lot sale price and not count as “profit.” As such, I 
recommend we proceed with the purchase of these lots as outlined in the agreement 
included in the packet. I suspect the city would not get another shot at these. 
 
The total cost to purchase all listed properties is $45,045.46. The city will also be 
responsible for $9,959.70 in taxes for all properties. These properties shall be exempt 
from taxes next year if acquired.  

 
Foreclosed Properties: Current Year Tax Liabilities 
   Property Summer Winter 
5012 Holland $7,908.31 $1,069.85 
Cardigan $122.61 $17.61 
Cardigan $122.61 $17.61 
Young $122.61 $17.61 
Young $122.61 $17.61 
Young $122.61 $17.61 
Young $122.61 $17.61 
Young $122.61 $17.61 

   Season Total $8,766.58 $1,193.12 

   Annual Total 
 

$9,959.70 

City Council Packet 11 June 22, 2015



 
 

Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests and Comments    
   

 August Meetings: Business for the city council ebbs and flows in an 
unpredictable course. However, all things being equal, August should prove 
to present lighter agendas. I will be out of town for the meeting on the 10th, 
and my absence will likely delay some items from otherwise making it to the 
meeting on the 24th.   

 Family Farm & Home: The attorney’s office mailed letters the week of June 
15th. We will allow ample time for a response from the property and business 
owners.    
 

 

City Council Packet 12 June 22, 2015



 
City of Swartz Creek 

RESOLUTIONS  
Regular Council Meeting, Monday, June 22, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 

 
Resolution No. 150622-4A  MINUTES – June 8, 2015 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday, June 8, 2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 150622-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of June 22, 2015, to be circulated and 
placed on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 150622-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of June 22, 
2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8A FOIA POLICIES AND FORMS 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Legislature recently adopted amendments to the Michigan 
Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), Public Act 422 of 1976, especially as to fees that 
the City can assess for responding to FOIA requests, and  
 

City Council Packet 13 June 22, 2015



WHEREAS, the city adopts this resolution so that the fees it assesses in responding to 
FOIA requests are consistent with these changes in state law, and  
 
WHEREAS, the city also desires to have a comprehensive and transparent FOIA 
policy, and 
 
WHEREAS, the city maintains presence on the internet and is therefore compelled to 
maintain summary of its FOIA policies on its webpage,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOVLED, the City Council hereby resolves to adopt the 
FOIA Procedures and Guidelines, with related summary, and fee schedule attached 
hereto, as may be amended from time to time.  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8B BENCH DONATION ACCEPTANCE 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek accept the donation of a park bench from Beta Sigma 
Phi, including the inscription “BONNIE RODGERS – JULY 15, 2014 – BETA SIGMA 
PHI SORORITY”, said bench to be placed in Elms Park as directed by Mr. Svrcek and 
as permitted by the Park Board.   

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8C PAVING PROJECT CHANGE ORDER - BRISTOL 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the service cuts that service the GM facility and serve as the connecting 
traffic routes between Miller and Bristol Road are rapidly deteriorating; and 
 
WHEREAS, the ownership of these “cuts” was previously questioned, with evidence 
supporting ownership by General Motors; and 
 
WHEREAS, this ownership discrepancy resulted in the exclusion of these areas from 
the most recent federal aid road project in the vicinity, being the Bristol Road 
resurfacing; and 
 
WHEREAS, past practice and updated county parcel maps strongly support the case 
that these cuts are within the right-of-way of the city and are the city’s responsibility to 
own, operate, and maintain; and 

City Council Packet 14 June 22, 2015



 
WHEREAS, the city is in the process of resurfacing Miller Road and is able to extend 
very competitive unit prices to this adjacent area, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
additional paving scope as outlined in the engineers project description, including 
placement of 138.35 tons of hot mix asphalt (HMA) to complete the connection 
between the Miller Road surface area and the Bristol Road project limit, estimated to 
cost $10,827.96, and further direct staff to procure such services under the costs 
established by the existing contract and appropriate such expenses as budgeted in 
fiscal year 2016. 
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8D PAVING PROJECT CHANGE ORDER – MILLER  
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the city widened Miller Road within the last decade to add a right turn only 
lane that extended from Elms Road to the west Kroger entrance along the north side 
of Miller Road (west bound traffic); and 
 
WHEREAS, a section of this improvement remains in superior condition to the 
surrounding pavement on Miller Road and was therefore excluded from participation 
within the MDOT project to resurface Miller Road; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city does not anticipate resurfacing Miller Road for the foreseeable 
future; and 
 
WHEREAS, economies of scale and safety concerns, especially related to traffic 
control and mobilization make the present time opportune to resurface this additional 
lane; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city is in the process of resurfacing Miller Road and is able to extend 
very competitive unit prices to this project area, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
additional paving scope as outlined in the engineers project description, including 
placement of 56 tons of hot mix asphalt (HMA) to complete the connection between 
the work as mapped within the city council packet, said work estimated to cost 
$4,800.15, and further direct staff to procure such services under the costs established 
by the existing contract and appropriate such expenses as budgeted in fiscal year 
2016. 
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

City Council Packet 15 June 22, 2015



 
Resolution No. 150622-8E FIREWORKS ORDINANCE 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Act 256 of 2011, the Michigan Fireworks Safety Act, set state-
wide restrictions and allowances for the use of fireworks within the state of Michigan, 
and   
 
WHEREAS, this act limits control of local ordinances under specific circumstances, 
making the existing ordinance difficult to enforce, and 
 
WHEREAS, as a city with fewer than 50,000 residents in a county with fewer than 
750,000 residents, Swartz Creek retains the right to regulate consumer and display 
fireworks as it relates to the time, place, and manner of such use, and    
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, finding that these changes need to be in place 
immediately in order to provide for the protection of the public welfare during the 4th of 
July holiday, declares Ordinance 420 to be an emergency ordinance, 
 
 
THEREFORE, I MOVE the City of Swartz Creek ordains: 

 
 ORDINANCE NO. 420 
 
 An ordinance to bring the City into conformity with state law regarding the regulation of 
fireworks; to repeal conflicting ordinances on the same subject matter; and to provide 
penalties for violations thereof. 
        
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS: 
 
Section 1. Adoption of Fireworks Ordinance. 
 
 The City Council hereby adopts an ordinance regulating fireworks to read as follows: 
 
 Sec. 1. Definitions. 
 
 For purposes of this Ordinance, the following definitions shall apply: 
 
 1. Articles pyrotechnic:  pyrotechnic devices for professional use that are 

similar to consumer fireworks in the chemical composition and construction but 
not intended for consumer use, that meet the weight limits for consumer 
fireworks but are not labeled as such, and that are classified as UN0431 or 
UN0432 under 49 CFR 172.101. 

 
 2. APA:  American Pyrotechnics Association. 
 

City Council Packet 16 June 22, 2015



 3. Consumer fireworks:  fireworks devices that are designed to produce 
visible effects by combustion, that are required to comply with the construction, 
chemical composition and labeling regulations promulgated by the United 
States consumer product safety commission under 16 CFR parts 1500 and 
1507, and that are listed in APA standard 87-1, 3.1.2, 3.1.3 or 3.5   Consumer 
fireworks does not include low-impact fireworks.  

 
 4. Department:  Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA), 

State of Michigan. 
 
 5. Display fireworks:   large fireworks devices that are explosive materials 

intended for use in fireworks displays and designed to produce visible or 
audible effect by combustion, deflagration, or detonation as provided in 27 CFR 
555.11, 49 CFR 162 and APA standard 87-1, 4.1. 

 
 6. Firework or fireworks:  any composition or device, except for a starting 

pistol, a flare gun or a flare, designed for the purpose of producing a visible or 
audible effect by combustion, deflagration, or detonation.  Fireworks consist of 
consumer fireworks, low-impact fireworks, articles pyrotechnic, display fireworks 
and special effects. 

 
 7. Low Impact Fireworks: ground and handheld sparkling devices at that 

phrase is defined under APA standard 87-1, 3.1, 3.1.1.1 to 3.1.1.8 and 3.5. 
 
 8. Minor:  individual who is less than 18 years old. 
 
 9. National holiday:   A national holiday is defined in 5 USC 6103 and 

includes:  New Year’s Day (January ); Martin Luther King Jr. Day (third Monday 
in January); Washington’s Birthday (third Monday in February); Memorial Day 
(last Monday in May); Independence Day (July 4); Labor Day (first Monday in 
September); Columbus Day (second Monday in October); Veterans Day 
(November 11); Thanksgiving Day (fourth Thursday in November); Christmas 
Day (December 25).  

 
 10. NFPA:  National Fire Protection Association. 
 
 11. Novelties:  as defined under APA standard 87-1, 3.2, 3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 

3.2.4 and 3.2.5.and all of the following: 
 
 (a) Toy plastic or paper caps for toy pistols in sheets, strips, rolls or 

individual caps containing not more than .25 of a grain of explosive 
content per cap, in packages labeled to indicate the maximum explosive 
content per cup. 

   
 (b) Toy pistols, toy cannons, toy canes, toy trick noisemakers, and toy 

guns in which toy caps as described in the above paragraph are used, 
that are constructed so that the hand cannot come in contact with the 
cap when in place for the explosion, and that are not designed to break 
apart or be separated so as to form a missile by the explosion. 

City Council Packet 17 June 22, 2015



   
 (c) Flitter sparklers in paper tubes not exceeding 1/8 inch in diameter. 
  
 12. Person: individual, agent, association, charitable organization, company, 

limited liability company, corporation, labor organization, legal representative, 
partnership, unincorporated organization, or any other legal or commercial 
entity.  

 
 13. Special effects:  a combination of chemical elements or chemical 

compounds capable of burning independently of the oxygen of the atmosphere 
and designed and intended to produce an audible, visual, mechanical, or 
thermal effect as in integral part of a motion picture, radio, television, theatrical 
or opera production or live entertainment. 

 
 Sec. 2. Novelties. 
 

This Ordinance does not apply to and does not regulate the use of Novelties in the 
City.  
 
 Sec.3.  Consumer Fireworks. 
 
 (A) Consumer fireworks may be used in the City on the day proceeding, the 

day of and the day after a national holiday between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 
1:00 a.m.  

 
 (B) At any time other than the day preceding, the day of and/or the day after 

a national holiday consumer fireworks shall be prohibited. 
 
 (C) A person shall not ignite, discharge or use consumer fireworks on public 

property, school property, church property or the property of another person, 
without that person or organization’s express permission to use the consumer 
fireworks on those premises.    

 
 (D) A person shall not use consumer fireworks or low impact fireworks while 

under the influence of alcoholic liquor, a controlled substance or a combination 
of alcoholic liquor and a controlled substance.  

 
 (E) Consumer fireworks shall only be used in accordance with all applicable 

local, state and federal laws. 
 
 Sec. 4. Pyrotechnic and Display Fireworks. 
 
 (A) The City may permit articles pyrotechnic, display fireworks and special 

effect fireworks pursuant to the provisions of MCL 28.451, et seq and this 
Ordinance. 

 
 (B) Any person wishing to conduct an articles pyrotechnic, display fireworks 

or special effects display shall, at least 45 days prior to any display, submit an 
application on a form furnished by the City, pay the required fee and shall 

City Council Packet 18 June 22, 2015



secure permission from the City prior to any such fireworks display.  
 
 (C) The site plan of the area where the articles pyrotechnic, display fireworks 

or special effects display is to be conducted shall be submitted with the 
application.  The site plan shall set forth all structures in the area and within the 
discharge site fallout area.  The site plan shall furthermore set forth the distance 
separating any fireworks and any spectator viewing areas.  All site plans shall 
be forwarded to the Fire Chief and/or his designated alternate for approval, 
including any recommended conditions, prior to coming before the City Council 
for its approval.  

 
 (D) A copy of any required state or federal permit for the fireworks display 

shall be submitted with the application. 
 
 (E) Proof of insurance conforming the requirements of this Ordinance and 

PA 256 of 211 shall be submitted with the application. 
 
 (F) The application shall include information as to the competency and 

qualifications of the fireworks display operators, as required by NFPA 1123. 
 
 (F) The City shall approve an application for an articles pyrotechnic, display 

fireworks or special effects display if it finds that all of the following standards 
are satisfied: 

 
1) The application and accompanying documentation is complete and 

conforms to the requirements of this Ordinance. 
 

2) The operator of the fireworks display is competent and qualified to 
conduct the fireworks display, per NFPA 1123. 

 
3) The Fire Chief or his/her designated alternate has approved the 

application and site plan.  
 

4) The fireworks display will not have an adverse effect upon public 
safety. 

 
5) The time, duration, location of the fireworks or special effects display 

will not, due to noise and other factors, unreasonably disturb the 
peace of persons residing within the vicinity.  

6) The City, in approving an application hereunder, shall have the 
authority to impose such conditions as it determines in its sole 
reasonable discretion are necessary to assure that the fireworks 
display will satisfy the above standards. 

 
 (G) Requirements and Restrictions. 
 

1) The person conducting the fireworks display shall follow NFPA 
1123 for fireworks display and/or the City requirements set forth 
herein, whichever are more restrictive. 

City Council Packet 19 June 22, 2015



 
2) A minimum safe area of 250 feet radius, plus an additional 70 feet 

radius for each inch by which the fireworks shell exceeds 3 inches 
in diameter shall be required.   The City shall have the authority to 
grant a variance from this requirement where it determines in its 
sole reasonable discretion that, given 1) the nature of the subject 
site, 2) the nature of the surrounding area and/or 3) the nature of 
the proposed fireworks display, that a variance will not have a 
material adverse impact on public safety.  In no event, however, 
shall the applicant fail to comply with the minimum requirements 
of NFPA 1123. 

 
3) The applicant shall maintain personal injury liability 

insurance/property damage liability insurance in the amount of 
$1,000,000 for each event.   The City shall be named as an 
additional insured on the insurance policy. 

 
4) The City shall not issue a permit to a nonresident person until the 

person has appointed in writing a member of the state bar or a 
resident agent to be the person’s legal representative upon whom 
all process in an action or proceeding against the person may be 
served.  

 
5) The applicant shall be responsible for all shells being fired.  In the 

event one or more of the shells does not explode, the applicant 
shall secure the area until the unexploded shell(s) is found and 
properly disposed of. 

 
6) The consumption of alcohol immediately prior to and during the 

fireworks display by any person involved in conducting the display 
is prohibited. 

 
7) A fireworks display conducted hereunder shall conform with all 

specifications set forth in the approved application and site plan, 
as well as with any conditions imposed by the City in granting 
such approval. 

 
8) The applicant shall cause the site of the fireworks display to be 

cleaned up within 24 hours after the fireworks display has ended.  
 

9) A permit is not transferable and shall not be granted to a minor. 
  

Sec. 5. Violations; penalties. 
 
 Any person that violates any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed responsible 
for a municipal civil infraction and fined in accordance with the following schedule:  

Minimum  Maximum 
Fine   Fine 

1st offense within 3 year period    $ 75.00    $500.00 

City Council Packet 20 June 22, 2015



2nd offense within 3 year period* $ 150.00     $500.00 
3rd offense within 3 year period* $ 325.00       $500.00 
4th offense within 3 year period* $ 500.00       $500.00 

 
 Additionally, the violator shall pay costs which may include all expenses, direct and 
indirect, which the City incurs in enforcing this Ordinance. 
 
 In addition, the City shall have the right to proceed in any court of competent 
jurisdiction for the purpose of obtaining an injunction, restraining order or other appropriate 
remedy to compel compliance with this Ordinance.   Each day that a violation of this 
Ordinance continues to exist shall constitute a separate violation of this Ordinance.   
 
Section 2. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. 
 
 The City Council hereby repeals all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict 
herewith, including Section 10-192. 
 
Section 3. Effective Date. 
 
This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon publication. 
 
At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Swartz Creek held on June 22, 2015, 
adoption of the foregoing ordinance was moved by Councilmember ____ and supported by 
Councilmember ____. 
 
Voting for:  
Voting against: 
 
The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 
 
      ______________________________ 
      David A. Krueger 
      Mayor 
 
 CERTIFICATION 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. 420, which was enacted by the City Council of 
the City of Swartz Creek at a regular meeting held on June 22, 2015. 
 
 

______________________________ 
Juanita Aguilar, City Clerk 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8F SPRINGBROOK EAST LOT PROCEEDS 

City Council Packet 21 June 22, 2015



  
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the city acquired a total of 12 vacant units from street paving special 
assessment projects in Springbrook East in December, 2011, including the following 
units: 

Springbrook East Units  
Parcel Number Number  Property Address Owner 

    58-36-676-039       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-040       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-041       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-042       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-043       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-044       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-051       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-053       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-054       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-055       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-056       0 LINDSEY DR       City Swartz Creek 
58-36-676-064       0 RUSSELL DR       City Swartz Creek 

 
WHEREAS, the city determined that a public purpose existed for obtaining the lots, 
being control and guarantee for the collection of the special assessment fees, the 
preservation of property values for the existing homes in the subdivisions and the 
resolve of underground utility and storm-surface water issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city previously found that the long term intent was to sell the lots to 
recover assessment costs and other administrative costs and to preserve property 
values; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city resolved on October 14, 2013, to permit the Springbrook East 
Condominium Association to benefit from lot sale proceeds above the city’s costs as a 
means to offset development costs contributed by association members as follows: 
 

“Sell the 12 Springbrook East lots to Springbrook East Association for $2,535.50 
each under a three year non-binding agreement wherein the association could buy 
any number of lots at any time and re-sell them at their sole discretion.  At any 
time, either party could back out of the agreement upon written notice after which 
the City would have no further obligation to the Association.” 

 
WHEREAS, the association and the city, due to procedural circumstance, never 
entered in to such an arrangement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city issued a request for proposals to develop these units in 2014, had 
the proposals reviewed by a committee, and resolved to sell the units at market value 
to Woodside Builders for an amount exceeding the recovery of the assessment and 
administrative costs; and 
 

City Council Packet 22 June 22, 2015



WHEREAS, the city invested $2,535.50 into each lot with sale proceeds expected to 
total $105,168.50 for all twelve lots, leaving $74,742.50 unencumbered; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Springbrook East Condominium Association board now requests that 
the lot sale proceeds in excess of the costs input by the city be transferred to the 
association to offset a portion of their special assessment costs. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council approves the 
payment of $74,742.50 or 71.1%, whichever is less, of Springbrook East lot sale 
proceeds to the Springbrook East Condominium Association, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the city shall issue the association a check for 71.1% 
of proceeds received to date and shall endeavor to future payments within 60 days of 
each sale at the rate of 71.1% of each such sale as outlined in the current purchase 
agreements.  
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8G DYE ROAD LOT SALES 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns two vacant, unimproved parcels of real 
property on Dye Road, identified as parcel 58-29-551-026, and 58-29-551-028, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city received an unsolicited offer to purchase this property from an 
adjacent landowner, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city council directed the planning commission to make a 
recommendation concerning this matter, and;  
 
WHEREAS, the commission reviewed the proposal at their meeting on June 2, 2015 
and found the properties to be of marginal public value, and; 
 
WHEREAS, under the city’s land sale policy, the city council finds that a professional 
auction is the optimal sale process to be in the best interest of the public for the 
purposes of expediting the sale of surplus property, 
 
NOW, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek directs the city manager to 
enter into contract with Biddergy LLC as included in the city council packet of June 22, 
2015 for the auction both parcels. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all such bids shall be such bids be brought 
back to the city council for consideration, with the city council reserving the right to 
reject any and all bids.  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 

City Council Packet 23 June 22, 2015



Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8H THIRD STREET PROPERTY 
   

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek city council made the following findings as it relates to 
the future use of 5017 Third Street, PID 58-01-502-077: 

 
1. The prior use, existing zoning, and future land use designation for this parcel 

are all classified as residential 
2. The parcel still retains two accessory structures of a residential use 
3. The parcel is adjacent to a residential use to the south and a commercial use to 

the north, with residential across the street and commercial behind 
4. Adjacent owners have expressed a written interest to split the property 
5. If split, resulting parcels must be rezoned to reflect the parent parcel of the 

respective buyer 
6. Any split line must transect the property east-west to enable access 
7. Resulting parcel splits must be combined with the respective parent parcels 

upon any sale; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council directed the city manager to negotiate the 
sale, split, and related conditions of such sale with the adjacent landowners on Third 
Street; and, 
 
WHEREAS, a purchase agreement and a pair of sale instruments are now presented 
to the city council for consideration, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council hereby 
approves the sale of 5017 Third Street for $7,500, said sale to involve the split and 
separate deeding to the adjacent land owners as outlined in the purchase agreement 
and quit claim deeds attached. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the council directs staff to make said sale 
instruments available for public inspection and comment for no less than 30 days, in 
accordance with city charter, at which point the sales shall be considered again by the 
city council. 
  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8I COUNTY TREASURER’ AGREEMENT, ACQUIRE TAX 
REVERTED PROPERTY 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

City Council Packet 24 June 22, 2015



WHEREAS, on June 8, 2015 at a public meeting, the Swartz Creek City Council 
reviewed the staff and planning commission recommendation to acquire specific 
parcels listed as Genesee County Treasurers’ tax reverted property currently under 
foreclosure; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that a public purpose exists for the acquisition of the 
property, located at 5012 Holland Drive, that purpose being the potential blight 
elimination, environmental remediation, and neighborhood enhancement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that a public purpose exists for the acquisition of the 
properties on Young Drive and Cardigan Drive, that purpose being the prevention of 
blight, potential drainage and other infrastructure improvements, and neighborhood 
enhancement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the list of all such properties for which there is a public purpose includes: 
 

Parcel Number Address Minimum Bid 
58-02-529-017 5012 Holland Drive $34,137.42 
58-03-531-033 Cardigan Drive 1673.62 
58-03-531-034 Cardigan Drive 1673.60 
58-03-531-129 Young Drive 1671.99 
58-03-531-130 Young Drive 1671.91 
58-03-531-136 Young Drive 870.69 
58-03-531-143 Young Drive 1673.64 
58-03-531-144 Young Drive 1673.59 
   
Total  $45,045.46 

 
; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County Treasurers’ Office requires certain conditions and stipulations 
relative to the acquisition of tax reverted properties by local units of government, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I Move the City of Swartz Creek enter into an agreement with 
the Genesee County Treasurers’ Office, and further, direct the Mayor Dave Krueger 
and City Clerk to execute the agreement on behalf of the City, agreement as follows: 

 
NOTICE TO GENESEE COUNTY TREASURER DEBORAH L. CHERRY, THE FORECLOSING 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT, OF ELECTION TO PURCHASE FORECLOSED PROPERTY 
 

 The City of Swartz Creek hereby notifies Deborah L. Cherry, Genesee County Treasurer 
and Genesee County Foreclosing Governmental Unit, that it intends to purchase property 
described as SEE ATTACHED LISTING, also known as SEE ATTACHED LISTING, which 
property is located in Swartz Creek, Michigan, for a public purpose. The purchase price is 
$45,046.46, which amount is the minimum bid as that term is defined in MCL 211.78m (11). 
  
The public purpose for which the property is being purchased is: 
 
Blight prevention, infrastructure improvements, and neighborhood enhancement thus advancing 
neighborhood stabilization. 
 

City Council Packet 25 June 22, 2015



 The City of Swartz Creek agrees that this Notice will be filed with the Genesee County 
Register of Deeds and that the City of Swartz Creek  will notify the Foreclosing Governmental 
Unit at least seven days before the event if it ever sells or transfers to a third party all or any part 
of the above described property. Further, the City of Swartz Creek understands and agrees that if 
it should ever sell the purchased property above described for an amount in excess of the 
minimum bid and all costs incurred relating to demolition, renovation, improvements, or 
infrastructure development, the excess amount shall be returned to the Genesee County 
Treasurer for deposit into the delinquent tax property sales proceeds account for the year in 
which the property was purchased by the City of Swartz Creek.   
  
Upon the request of the Foreclosing Governmental Unit the  
City of Swartz Creek shall provide without cost to the Foreclosing Governmental Unit information 
requested regarding any subsequent sale or transfer of the above described property. The 
information shall be provided within seven days of receipt of the request. 
 
This election by the City of Swartz Creek is made subject to any prior right of election vested in 
the State of Michigan. 
 
The City of Swartz Creek understands that neither Genesee County nor Deborah L. Cherry, 
either individually and/or as Genesee County Treasurer and/or as the Foreclosing Governmental 
Unit, makes any warranty of any kind as to the title transferred to the City of Swartz Creek and 
will not indemnify, defend, save nor hold harmless the City of Swartz Creek from any or all claims, 
liabilities, damages, losses, suits, fines, penalties, demands or expenses, including costs of suit 
and attorney fees, incurred by the City of Swartz Creek because of or related to its election to 
purchase the property above described.   
 
The City of Swartz Creek agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless Genesee County 
and Deborah L. Cherry, individually and/or as Genesee County Treasurer and/or as Foreclosing 
Governmental Unit, from any and all claims, liabilities, damages, losses, suits, fines, penalties, 
demands and expenses, including costs of suit and attorney fees, which Genesee County and/or 
Deborah L. Cherry, individually and/or as Genesee County Treasurer and/or as Foreclosing 
Governmental Unit incurred because of or related to the election of the City of Swartz Creek to 
purchase the property above described.        
  
Attached to this notice is a copy of the resolution authorizing the purchase which resolution 
incorporates the indemnification of Genesee County and Deborah L. Cherry. 
 
 
Date:_______________     _____________________ 
       David A. Krueger, Mayor  
 
 
Date:_______________     _____________________ 
       Juanita Aguilar, Clerk 

  
BE IF FURTHER RESOLVED, the cost to purchase such properties, being $45,045.46 
as well as the addition of the current year taxes, shall be appropriated to the 
unencumbered, unreserved General Fund (101) fund balance. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  
 

Resolution No. 150622-8J AFSCME LABOR CONTRACT WAGE OPENER 
 

City Council Packet 26 June 22, 2015



 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek entered into agreement with the American 
Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees on June 25, 2012 to provide for 
conditions and provisions of employment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement, set to expire on June 30, 2016, did 
not establish a wage for the fiscal year 2016, beginning on July 1, 2015, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
Wage Agreement between the City of Swartz Creek and the AFCSME bargaining unit 
as included herein, said agreement to include a rate increase of 2% for all 
classifications and groups, and further, authorize the Mayor and City Manager to 
execute the agreement on behalf of the City.   

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8K SUPERVISORS ASSOCIATION WAGE OPENER 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek entered into agreement with the City of Swartz 
Creek Supervisors Association on August 27, 2012 to provide for conditions and 
provisions of employment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement, set to expire on June 30, 2016, did 
not establish a wage for the fiscal year 2016, beginning on July 1, 2015, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
Wage Agreement between the City of Swartz Creek and the Supervisors Association 
bargaining unit as included herein, said agreement to include a rate increase of 2% for 
all classifications and groups, with the exception of the Police Lieutenant, which shall 
be compensated $59,500 annually, and further, authorize the Mayor and City Manager 
to execute the agreement on behalf of the City.   

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8L POLC LABOR CONTRACT WAGE OPENER 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

City Council Packet 27 June 22, 2015



WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek entered into agreement with the Police Officers 
Labor Council on April 30, 2012 to provide for conditions and provisions of 
employment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement, set to expire on June 30, 2016, did 
not establish a wage for the fiscal year 2016, beginning on July 1, 2015, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
Addendum to Agreement Between the City of Swartz Creek and the Police Officers 
Labor Council Patrol Officers Unit as included herein, said agreement to include, 
among other attributes, a rate increase of 2% for all classifications and groups, and 
further, authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the addendum on behalf of the 
City.   

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8M CITY MANAGER YEARS OF SERVICE AFFIRMATION 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Zettel began fulltime employment, including benefits, for the City of 
Swartz Creek in July of 2006, and; 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Zettel resigned, effective in September 2010, after four years and two 
months service, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city council hired Mr. Zettel, effective January 1, 2014, to serve in 
the position of city manager, a full time position with benefits,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek recognizes 
prior time served towards Mr. Zettel’s employment agreement as it relates to vacation 
time, thereby making him an employee with five or more years of service as of 
January 1, 2015. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150622-8N SET 2015-2016 COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, Act 261 of the Public Acts of the State of Michigan of 1968, as amended, 
requires a public notice of the schedule of regular meetings of the Swartz Creek City 
Council be given once each calendar year or fiscal year and that said notice shall 
show the regular dates and times for the meeting and the place at which meetings are 
held; and 

City Council Packet 28 June 22, 2015



 
WHEREAS, the Act directs that notice be posted prominently at the principle office of 
the City of Swartz Creek or at the public building at which meetings are held or 
published in the newspaper of general circulation in Swartz Creek, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the Act, public notice is hereby given that regular 
meetings for fiscal year 2015-2016 shall be held twice each month, and further, that all 
meetings shall be held in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 8083 Civic Drive, 
Swartz Creek, Michigan, unless otherwise provided in advance by the City Council, 
and further, meetings shall commence at 7:00 P.M. on the following dates: 

 
July 2015:  Monday – 13th  
   Monday – 27th     
 
August 2015:  Monday – 10th  
   Monday – 24th    
 
September 2015:  Monday – 14th 
   Monday – 28th    
 
October 2015:  Monday – 12th    (Columbus Day) 
   Monday – 26th  
 
November 2015:  Monday – 9th   
   Monday – 23rd   

 
December 2015:  Monday – 7th (One Week Earlier) 
   Monday – 14th  (Two Weeks Earlier) 
 
January 2016:  Monday – 11th  
   Monday – 25th     
 
February 2016:  Monday – 8th 

Monday – 22nd  
 

March 2016:  Monday – 14th  
   Monday – 28th  
 
April 2016:  Monday – 11th  
   Monday – 25th 
 
May 2016:  Monday – 9th  
   Monday – 23rd   

 
June 2016:  Monday – 13th  
   Monday – 27th   
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk is hereby directed to post a copy of this 
resolution in a prominent place in the City Offices of the City of Swartz Creek. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to supply 
forthwith, upon request, a copy of this resolution to any newspaper of general 
circulation in the political subdivision in which the meeting will be held and/or to any 
radio or television station that regularly broadcasts into the City of Swartz Creek. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 

City Council Packet 29 June 22, 2015



Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

City Council Packet 30 June 22, 2015



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 6/8/2015 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   Krueger. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, City Clerk Juanita Aguilar, 

DPS Director Tom Svrcek, Police Chief Rick Clolinger, 
Officer Nick Paul and K9 Ike. 

     
Others Present: Bob Plumb, Sharon Shumaker, Boots Abrams, Dave 

Caudle, Jo Holmquist, Dennis Craner, Mike & Lorraine 
Ahearne, Lana Grosinsky, Lois Lawrence, Pat Paul, 
Jeanne Jackson, Betty Binder, Don Austin, Steve 
Shumaker, Lou Fleury, Melissa Hubbard, Joe Perreault, 
Jim Florence. 

 
 
 Resolution No. 150608-01       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
  Second by Councilmember Hicks 
 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby excuse the absence of Mayor Krueger 

due to attending a conference. 
 
  YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Resolution No. 150608-02       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the Minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting held Monday, May 26, 2015 to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Hicks, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 

 NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

City Council Packet 31 June 22, 2015



 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution No. 150608-03       (Carried) 

 
Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 

  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented, for the 
Regular Council Meeting of June 8, 2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 

  NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
  Resolution No. 150608-04       (Carried) 
 

 Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
Second by Councilmember Gilbert 

 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of June 8, 
2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
YES: Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
Melissa Hibbard, 8333 Miller Road, spoke about genetically modified foods.  Ms. Hibbard 
asked if anyone had gotten with the farmers in the city and talked about the dangers of 
genetically modified foods and the possibility of growing more organic foods.  Ms. Hibbard 
spoke about “Agenda 21” and asked the council to look into it.  
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
Veteran’s Memorial Committee & Friends Donation   (Presentation) 
 
The Veteran’s Memorial Committee & Friends made a donation to the K9 program from 
proceeds that were made from a garage sale during Hometown Days.  Chief Clolinger 
thanked everyone for how hard they worked to make the sale a success.   
 
Fireworks Ordinance       (Discussion) 
 
City Manager Zettel spoke about the current ordinance, the state’s new laws, and possible 
changes to the city ordinance.   
 
 
 

City Council Packet 32 June 22, 2015



Traffic Signal Removal                     
 
 Resolution No. 150608-05                                       (Carried) 
   

Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
Second by Councilmember Hicks 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns traffic signals within the city that are 
operated and maintained by the Genesee County Road Commission, and  
 
WHEREAS, the GCRC finds that it is no longer practical or advisable to operate the 
traffic signals on Miller Road that service Bristol Road and General Motors, due to 
their age and obsolescence, and  
 
WHEREAS, the city is being requested by the GCRC to replace or remove such 
signals, and 
 
WHEREAS, activity at the General Motors facility, including trip counts and 
employment are greatly reduced, and 
 
WHEREAS, the signals have not been regulating traffic for many years, and 
 
WHEREAS, the city engineer conducted a traffic analysis for these two signals and 
found that the signals are no longer warranted, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOVLED,  the City Council determines that it is 
unnecessary to maintain traffic signals at these locations and directs staff to arrange 
for the removal of such signals as soon as practical.  

 
Discussion Ensued. 

 
  YES: Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Pinkston. 

NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Family Farm & Home Special Land Use 
 
 Resolution No. 150608-06             (Carried) 
   

Motion by Councilmember Pinkston 
Second by Councilmember Hicks 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek approved a special land use for outdoor 
sales in storage for 4315 Elms Road (Family Farm & Home), in accordance with the 
site plan dated November 17, 2010, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the site has been noted to be in noncompliance with the site plan as it 
relates to this special land use, by virtue of numerous complaints, and; 
 
WHEREAS, city staff have attempted to engage the owner and business on 
numerous occasions over the period of a year to remedy the situation, including 

City Council Packet 33 June 22, 2015



informal letters, a notice of violation, and informal meetings with site management, 
and;  
 
WHEREAS, the operation of the site has been further compromised by use of 
restricted parking areas for sales and storage of merchandise, industrial wares, 
and debris, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the planning commission recommends that more effective 
enforcement measures be taken, specifically relating to the function of the special 
land use, and 
 
WHEREAS, ordinance 30.06 provides provisions for the correction and revocation 
of special land uses, 
 
NOW, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek City Council directs the 
city attorney to work with the building official to draft a notice of violation to send to 
the land owner and business owner as provided for in ordinance 30.06. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED city council directs staff to report the status of this 
matter after the expiration of the 30 day correction period.  

 
Discussion Took Place. 
 
  YES: Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Pinkston, Porath. 

NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Dye Road Lot Sales 
 
 Resolution No. 150608-07       (Failed) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Porath 
Second by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns two vacant, unimproved parcels of real 
property on Dye Road, identified as parcel 58-29-551-026, and 58-29-551-028, 
and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city received an unsolicited offer to purchase this property from an 
adjacent landowner, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city council directed the planning commission to make a 
recommendation concerning this matter, and;  
 
WHEREAS, the commission reviewed the proposal at their meeting on June 2, 
2015 and found the properties to be of marginal public value, and; 
 
WHEREAS, commission recommends that the city council solicit sealed offers 
(bids) from the two adjacent land owners (Dr Burgess and Mr. Rashmawi) for both 
parcels, and 
 
WHEREAS, under the city’s land sale policy, the city council finds the 
recommended sale process and to be in the best interest of the public for the 
purposes of expediting the sale of surplus property and the consolidation of such 
parcels for more effective development, 

City Council Packet 34 June 22, 2015



 
NOW, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek directs the city manager to 
solicit sealed bids for both parcels from the owners of 3380 Dye Road and 3398 
Dye Road. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such bids be brought back to the city council for 
consideration.  

 
Discussion Ensued. 
  

YES: None.  Motion Failed. 
NO: Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker. 

 
 Resolution No. 150608-08       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 
  Second by Councilmember Pinkston 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council refer the matter for the Dye Road lot sales 
back to the City Manager for review and proposals to be brought back to Council 
with more options for the sale of the lots. 
 
 YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 
 NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried.  

 
Liability Insurance Payment 
 
 Resolution No. 150608-09       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
  Second by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek appropriate an amount not to exceed $64,965 to 
Michigan Municipal League Meadow Brook Insurance, payment of the City’s annual 
2015-2016 premiums for property and liability insurance, funds to be apportioned to 
reflect departmental coverage as noted in the invoice. 

 
  YES: Hicks, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Fiscal Year 2016 Budget Adoption 
 
 Resolution No. 150608-10       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
  Second by Councilmember Porath 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council, in accordance with the General 
Appropriations Act and Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, adopt the following 
2015-2016 fiscal budget based upon the following tax mils: 
 

City Council Packet 35 June 22, 2015



General Operating Levy   4.8289 
Public Safety SAD    4.9000 
Sanitation Levy    2.6270 

 

 
 

City Council Packet 36 June 22, 2015



 
 

City Council Packet 37 June 22, 2015



 
 
 

City Council Packet 38 June 22, 2015



 
 

City Council Packet 39 June 22, 2015



 
 

City Council Packet 40 June 22, 2015



 
Discussion Ensued. 
 
  YES: Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Boots Abrams, 5352 Greenleaf Dr, stated that the presentation for the K9 program was 
awesome.  Ms. Abrams spoke about the Swartz Creek Women’s Club doing a Rock A 
Thon in the rain and stated that they will be presenting that check to the K9 program in 
August since they do not have a meeting in July. 
 
Dennis Craner, 5299 Worchester, asked when the new intersection projects on Miller Road 
would be done.  He was advised that it would probably be done a year from now when 
school gets out.  Mr. Cramer asked if the city has provided the statistics for the loss of the 
tax base in Swartz Creek in the last 20-30 years.  Mr. Zettel advised that it was provided 
about 18 months ago when the Special Assessment was the focus and that they went 
back at least ten years.   

City Council Packet 41 June 22, 2015



Joe Perreault, 6737 Nemer Court, spoke about working the garage sale during Hometown 
days with Rick Henry and his wife.  Mr. Perreault stated that the city should be proud to 
have people like Rick and his wife, that do so much for the community.   
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Porath spoke about the Miller Road project being started.  Mr. Porath 
asked if most of the project was just repaving.  He was advised that it was mill and 
repaving with some curb work.  Mr. Porath spoke about the traffic signals that are to be 
removed and asked if the light at the racetrack would be removed as well.  He was advised 
that it will stay for the time being until the future of the racetrack property is determined.  
 
Councilmember Shumaker asked if the State Highway Department has any control of the 
light at the racetrack.  Mr. Zettel advised that he believes they do control the function of the 
lights.  Mr. Shumaker spoke about Rick Henry, stating that he was one of the original 
people on the Veteran’s Memorial Committee.  Mr. Shumaker stated that Rick does more 
than his share on the committee.  Mr. Shumaker also spoke about Joe Perreault stating 
that he has done a tremendous amount of work for the community as well.  Mr. Shumaker 
suggested some films people could watch in reference to genetically modified food.   
 
Councilmember Gilbert spoke about the new streetlights on Miller and Fairchild.  Mr. 
Gilbert spoke about the lots in Heritage that the county has for sale, asking who owns the 
lots.  Mr. Gilbert asked what was happening with the Third Street property.  He was 
advised that something would be prepared for the next meeting.   
 
Councilmember Hicks also spoke about the new streetlights on Miller Road, stating that 
she was thrilled to see them there, although she hasn’t seen them lit yet.  Ms. Hicks spoke 
about the last Park Board meeting, stating that Joe Perreault’s group is very active in the 
parks and wants to make sure everyone knows what a great job they are doing.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams spoke about seeing a woman pushing a shopping cart over the 
Morrish Road bridge from Meijer, stating that it was very dangerous.   
 
Adjournment 
 

Resolution No. 150608-11       (Carried) 
 
Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
Second by Councilmember Gilbert 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek adjourn the Regular Session of the City Council 
meeting at 8:25 p.m. 

 
 YES: Unanimous Voice Vote. 

                      NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
Richard B. Abrams ,  
Mayor Pro-Tem      Juanita Aguilar, City Clerk 

City Council Packet 42 June 22, 2015



FOIA Procedures 1 Adopted: XXX 2015 

City of Swartz Creek 
Freedom of Information Act Procedures & Guidelines 

Principles and Intent 

It is the policy of the City of Swartz Creek that all persons, consistent with the Michigan Freedom of Information 
Act (FOIA), are entitled to full and complete information regarding the affairs of government and the official acts 
of those who represent them as public officials and employees. The people shall be informed so that they fully 
participate in the democratic process.  

The City of Swartz Creek’s policy with respect to FOIA requests is to comply with state law in all respects and to 
respond to FOIA requests in a consistent, fair, and transparent manner regardless of the source or content of such 
requests. 

The City of Swartz Creek acknowledges that it has a legal obligation to disclose all nonexempt public records in its 
possession pursuant to a FOIA request. The City of Swartz Creek acknowledges that sometimes it is necessary to 
observe exemptions identified under FOIA in order to ensure the effective operation of government and to 
protect the privacy of individuals.  

The City of Swartz Creek will protect the public’s interest in disclosure, while balancing the requirement to 
withhold or redact portions of certain records. The City of Swartz Creek’s policy is to disclose public records 
consistent with and in compliance with state law in a manner that is efficient in cost and time, thereby 
encouraging FOIA requests. 

General Policies 

The City Council acting pursuant to the authority within MCL 15.236 designates the City Manager as the FOIA 
Coordinator. The manager is authorized to designate other city staff, including counsel, to act on his or her behalf 
to accept and process written requests for the city’s public records and approve denials.  

If a request for a public record is received by facsimile or e-mail, the request is deemed to have been received on 
the following business day. If a request is sent by e-mail and delivered to a spam or junk-mail folder, the request is 
not deemed received until one day after the FOIA Coordinator first becomes aware of the request. The FOIA 
Coordinator shall maintain a record of the date the request was delivered to the spam or junk-mail folder and the 
date the FOIA Coordinator became aware of the request.  

The FOIA Coordinator and City Clerk shall review their respective and any general city email spam and/or junk-
mail folders on a regular basis, which shall be no less than once a month.  

The FOIA Coordinator may implement administrative rules and policies, consistent with state law and these 
procedures and guidelines, to administer the acceptance and processing of FOIA requests.  

The city is not obligated to create a new public record or make a compilation or summary of information which 
does not already exist. Neither the FOIA Coordinator nor other city staff are obligated to provide answers to 
questions contained in requests for public records or regarding objective or subjective content of the records 
themselves. 

The FOIA Coordinator shall keep a copy of all written requests for public records received by the city on file for a 
period of a least one year. 

Requesting a Public Record 

City Council Packet 43 June 22, 2015



FOIA Procedures 2 Adopted: XXX 2015 

A person requesting to inspect or obtain copies of public records prepared, owned, used, possessed or retained by 
the City of Swartz Creek must do so in writing. The request must sufficiently describe a public record so as to 
enable City personnel to identify and find the requested public record.  

No specific form to submit a request for a public record is required. However, the FOIA Coordinator may make 
available such a form for use by the public. 

Written request for public records may be submitted in person or by mail to the city office, located at 8083 Civic 
Drive. Requests may also be submitted electronically by facsimile and e-mail to the FOIA Coordinator. Upon their 
receipt, requests for public records shall be promptly forwarded to the FOIA Coordinator for processing.  

A person may request that public records be provided on non-paper physical media, electronically mailed or 
otherwise provided in lieu of paper copies. The city will comply with the request only if it possesses the necessary 
technological capability to provide records in the requested non-paper physical media format. Data storage 
devices and discs shall be provided by the city, at the expense of the requester, unless the requester provides 
such media in new and sealed form or a form that is otherwise ensured to be un-manipulated or contaminated 
with potentially harmful software. 

A person who makes a verbal, non-written request for information believed to be available on the city’s website, 
where practicable and to the best ability of the employee receiving the request, shall be informed of the pertinent 
website address.  

Note that these requirements shall not prohibit staff from providing public records upon verbal or informal 
request, in the normal course of business, as incidental requests of a non-verbal or electronic nature are 
requested outside of the FOIA statute from time to time. 

Processing a Request 

Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the person making the request, within five (5) business days of receipt of 
a FOIA request the city will issue a response. The city will respond to the request in one of the following ways: 

• Grant the request 
• Issue a written notice denying the request 
• Grant the request in part and issue a written notice denying  the request in part 
• Issue a notice indicating that, due to the nature of the request, the city needs an additional ten (10) days 

to respond. Only one such extension is permitted. 
• Issue a written notice indicated that the public record requested is available at no charge on the city’s 

website.  

If the request is granted, or granted in part, the FOIA Coordinator will require that payment be made in full for the 
allowable fees associated with the responding to the request before the public record is made available. The FOIA 
Coordinator shall provide a detailed itemization of the allowable costs incurred to process the request.  

A copy of these procedures and guidelines shall be provided to the requestor with the response to a written 
request for public records, provided however, that if these procedures and guidelines and the written public 
summary are maintained on the city’s website, then a website link to those documents may be provided in lieu of 
providing paper copies.  

If the cost of processing a FOIA request is $50 or less, the requester will be notified of the amount due and where 
the documents can be obtained. 

City Council Packet 44 June 22, 2015



FOIA Procedures 3 Adopted: XXX 2015 

If a good faith calculation by the city indicates that the cost of processing a FOIA request is expected to exceed 
$50, or if the requestor has not fully paid for a previously granted request, the city will require a good-faith 
deposit before processing the request. In making the request for a good-faith deposit the FOIA Coordinator shall 
provide the requestor with a detailed itemization of the allowable costs estimated to be incurred by the city to 
process the request. The city will also provide a best efforts estimate of a time frame it will take the city to 
provide the records. The best efforts estimate shall be nonbinding on the city, but will be made in good faith and 
will strive to be reasonably accurate, given the nature of the request in the particular instance, so as to provide 
the requested records in a manner based on the public policy expressed by the General Polices.  

• If a request is denied or denied in part, the FOIA Coordinator will issue a written denial which shall 
provide the following, as applicable: 

• An explanation as to why a requested public record is exempt from disclosure; or 
• A certificate that the requested records does not exist under the name or description provided by the 

requestor, or another name reasonably known by the city; or 
• An explanation or description of the public record or information with a public record that is separated or 

deleted from the public record; and 
• An explanation of the person’s right to submit an appeal of the denial to either the city council or seek 

judicial review in circuit court; and 
• An explanation of the right to receive attorneys’ fees, costs, and disbursements as well as actual or 

compensatory damages, and punitive damages of $1,000, should they prevail in circuit court. 
• The notice shall be signed by the FOIA Coordinator. 

If a request does not sufficiently describe a public record, the FOIA Coordinator may, in lieu of issuing a Notice of 
Denial indicating that the request is deficient, seek clarification or amendment of the request by the person 
making the request. Any clarification or amendment will be considered a new request subject to the timelines 
described in this section.  

The city shall provide reasonable facilities and opportunities for persons to examine and inspect public records 
during normal business hours. The FOIA Coordinator is authorized to promulgate rules regulating the manner in 
which records may be viewed so as to protect city records from loss, alternation, mutilation, or destruction and to 
prevent excessive interference with normal city operations.  

The FOIA Coordinator shall, upon written request, furnish a certified copy of a public records at no additional cost 
to the person requesting the public record. 

Fee Deposits 

If the fee estimate is expected to exceed $50.00 based on a good-faith calculation by the city, the requestor will 
be asked to provide a deposit not exceeding one-half of the total estimated fee. 

If a request for a public record is from a person who has not fully paid the city for copies of public records made in 
fulfillment of a previously granted written request, the FOIA Coordinator will require a deposit of 100% of the 
estimated processing fee before beginning to search for a public record for any subsequent written request by 
that person when all of the following conditions exist:  

• The final fee for the prior written request is not more than 105% of the estimated fee; 
• The public records made available contained the information sought in the prior written request and 

remain in the city’s possessions; 
• The public records were made available to the individual, subject to payment, within the time frame 

estimated by the city to provide the records; 

City Council Packet 45 June 22, 2015



FOIA Procedures 4 Adopted: XXX 2015 

• 90 days have passed since the FOIA Coordinator notified the individual in writing that the public records 
were available for pickup or mailing; 

• The individual is unable to show proof of prior payment to the city; and 
• The FOIA Coordinator has calculated a detailed itemization that is the basis for the current written 

request’s increased estimated fee deposit.  

The FOIA Coordinator will not require an increased estimated fee deposit if any of the following apply: 

• The person making the request is able to show proof of prior payment in full to the city; 
• The city is subsequently paid in full for the applicable prior written request; 
• 365 days have passed since the person made the request for which full payment was not remitted to the 

city. 

Calculation of Fees 

A fee will not be charged for the cost of search, examination, review, and the deletion and separation of exempt 
from nonexempt information unless failure to charge a fee would result in unreasonably high costs to the city 
because of the nature of the request in the particular instance, and the city specifically identifies the nature of the 
unreasonably high costs.  

The following factors shall be used to determine an unreasonably high cost to the city: 

• The particular request incurs costs greater than incurred from the typical or usual request received by the 
city. See Bloch v Davison Community Schools, 2011 Mich App Lexis 771, 2011 WL 1564645 

• Volume of the public record requested 
• Amount of time spent to search for, examine, review and separate exempt from non-exempt information 

in the record requested. 
• Whether public records from more than one city department or various city offices is necessary to 

respond to the request. 
• The available staffing to respond to the request. 
• Any other similar factors identified by the FOIA Coordinator in responding to the particular request. 

The city may charge for the following costs associated with processing a FOIA request: 

• Labor costs directly associated with searching for, locating, and examining a requested public record. 
• Labor costs associated with a review of a record to separate and delete information exempt from 

disclosure of information which is disclosed. 
• The actual cost of media discs, tapes, physical memory, or similar digital media. 
• The cost of duplication of publication, not including labor, of paper copies of public records. 
• The cost of labor associated with duplication or publication, including making paper copies, making digital 

copies or transferring digital public records to non-paper physical media or through the Internet or other 
electronic means.  

• The actual cost of mailing or sending a public record. 

Labor costs will be calculated based on the following requirements: 

• Estimated and charged labor costs will be allotted 15 minute increments with all partial time increments 
rounded down. 

• Labor costs will be charged at the hourly wage of the lowest-paid city employee capable of doing the work 
in the specific fee category, regardless of who actually performs the work. (If using contract or outside labor 
to separate and delete exempt material from non-exempt material, the public body must clearly note the 

City Council Packet 46 June 22, 2015



FOIA Procedures 5 Adopted: XXX 2015 

name of the person or firm who does the work and the total cost may not exceed an amount six (6) times 
the state minimum hourly wage). 

• Labor costs will also include a charge to cover or partially cover the cost of fringe benefits. The city may 
add up to 50% to the applicable labor charge amount to cover or partially cover the cost of fringe benefits, 
but in no case may it exceed the actual cost of fringe benefits. 

• Overtime wages will not be included in labor costs until agreed to by the requestor; overtime costs will not 
be used to calculate the fringe benefit cost. 

The cost to provide records on non-paper physical media when so requested will be based on the following 
requirements: 

• Media/computer discs, taps, physical memory, or similar media will be at the actual and most reasonably 
economical cost for the non-paper media. 

• This cost will only be assessed if the city has the technological capability necessary to provide the public 
record in the requested non-paper physical media format.  

• In order to ensure the integrity and security of the city’s technological infrastructure, the city will procure any 
requested non-paper media. The city may accept new, sealed media provided by the requestor.  

The cost to provide paper copies of records will be based on the following requirements: 

• Paper copies of public records made on standard letter (8.5 x 11) or legal (8.5 x 14) sized paper will not 
exceed $0.10 per sheet of paper. Copies for non-standard sized sheets of paper will reflect the actual cost 
of reproduction. 

• The city may provide records using double-sided printing, if cost-saving and available. 

The cost to mail records to a requestor will be based on the following requirements: 

• The actual cost to mail public records using a reasonably economical and justified means. 
• The city may charge for the least expensive form of postal delivery confirmation. 
• No cost or provision will be made for expedited shipping or insurance unless requested. 

If the FOIA Coordinator does not respond to a written request in a timely manner, the following shall be required: 

• Reduce the labor costs by 5% for each day the city exceeds the time permitted under FOIA up to a 50% 
maximum reduction, if any of the following applies: 

o The late response was willful and intentional. 
o The written request, within the first 250 words of the body of a letter facsimile, e-mail or e-mail 

attachment conveyed a request for information. 
o The written request included the words, characters, or abbreviations for “freedom of information:, 

“information”, “FOIA”, “copy” or a recognizable misspelling of such, or legal code reference to MCL 
15.231 et seq or 1976 Public Act 442 on the front of an envelope or in the subject line of an e-mail, 
letter or facsimile cover page. 

• Fully note the charge reduction in the Detailed Itemization of Costs Form. 

Waiver of Fees 

The cost of search for and copying of a public record may be waived or reduced if in the sole judgment of the FOIA 
Coordinator a waiver or reduced fee is in the public interest because such can be considered as primarily 
benefitting the general public. Such a record could consist of a record created for the primary purpose of informing 
the public on a matter of health, safety, or welfare (e.g. a media outlet request for a siren testing schedule or water 
quality report). 

The FOIA Coordinator will waive the first $20.00 of the processing fee for a request if the person requesting a 
public record submits an affidavit stating that they are: 

• Indigent and receiving specific public assistance; or 
• If not receiving public assistance, stating facts demonstrating an inability to pay because of indigency. 

City Council Packet 47 June 22, 2015



FOIA Procedures 6 Adopted: XXX 2015 

An individual is not eligible to receive the waiver if: 

• The requestor has previously received discounted copies of public records from the city twice during the 
calendar year; or 

• The requestor requests information in connection with other persons who are offering or providing 
payment to make the request. 

The FOIA Coordinator may make a Fee Waiver Affidavit Form available for use by the public. 

A nonprofit organization designated by the state to carry out activities under subtitle C of the Developmental 
Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 2000 and the Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental 
Illness Act, or their successors, if the request meets all of the following requirements: 

• Is made directly on behalf of the organization or its clients; 
• Is made for a reason wholly consistent with the mission and provisions of those laws under Section 931 of 

the Mental Health Code, MCL 330.1931; 
• Is accompanied by documentation of its designation by the state. 

Appeal of a Denial of a Public Record 

When a requestor believes that all or a portion of a public record has not been disclosed or has been improperly 
exempted from disclosure, he or she may file an appeal of the denial with the city council. The appeal must be in 
writing, specifically state the word “appeal” and identify the reason or reasons the requestor is seeking a reversal 
of the denial. An appeal shall not be considered to have been received until the first regularly scheduled meeting 
of the city council following the written submission of a denial or fee amount appeal. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving the appeal, the city manager or designee, acting on behalf of and in 
accordance with a resolution of the council, will respond in writing by: 

• Reversing the disclosure denial; 
• Upholding the disclosure denial; or 
• Reverse the disclosure denial in part and uphold the disclosure denial in part. 
• Under unusual circumstances, such as the need to examine or review a voluminous amount of separate 

and distinct public records or the need to collect the requested records from numerous facilities located 
apart from the office receiving or processing the request, the city manager may issue not more than one 
(1) notice of extension for not more than ten (10) business days to respond to the appeal. 

Whether or not a requestor submitted an appeal of denial to the city council, he or she may file a civil action in 
circuit court within 180 days after the city’s final determination to deny the request.  

If the court determines that the public record is not exempt from disclosure, the court will award the appellant 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, cost and disbursements. If the court determines that the appellant prevails only in 
part, the court in its discretion may award all or an appropriate portion of reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and 
disbursements. 

If the court determines that the city arbitrarily and capriciously violated the FOIA by refusing or delaying the 
disclosure of copies of a public record, it shall award the appellant punitive damages in the amount of $1,000. The 
court may also order that the public body pay a civil fine of $1,000 to the state treasury. 

Appeal of an Excessive FOIA Processing Fee 

If a requestor believes that the fee charged by the city to process a FOIA request exceeds the amount permitted 
by state law, he or she must first submit a written appeal for a fee reduction to the city council. The appeal must 

City Council Packet 48 June 22, 2015



FOIA Procedures 7 Adopted: XXX 2015 

be in writing, specifically state the word “appeal” and identify how the required fee exceeds the amount 
permitted.  

Within ten (10) business days of receiving the appeal, the city manager or designee, acting on behalf of and in 
accordance with a resolution of the council, will respond in writing by: 

• Waive the fee; 
• Reduce the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis that supports the remaining 

fee, accompanied by a certification by the city manager or designee that the statements in the 
determination are accurate and the reduced fee amount complies with these procedures and guidelines 
and the Section 4 of the FOIA; 

• Uphold the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis under Section 4 of the FOIA 
that supports the required fee, accompanied by a certification by the manager that the statements in the 
determination are accurate and the fee amount complies with these procedures and guidelines and 
Section 4 of the FOIA; or 

• Issue a notice detailing the reason or reasons for extending for not more than ten (10) business days the 
period during which the manager will respond to the written appeal. 

Within forty-five (45) days after receiving notice of the city manager’s determination of a fee appeal, a requestor 
may commence a civil action in circuit court for a fee reduction. If a civil action is filed appealing the fee, the city is 
not obligated to process the request for the public record until the court resolves the fee dispute. 

If the court determines that the city required a fee that exceeds the amount permitted, it shall reduce the fee to a 
permissible amount. If the appellant in the civil action prevails by receiving a reduction of 50% or more of the 
total fee, the court may award all or appropriate amount of reasonable attorneys’ fees, cots, and disbursements. 

If the court determines that the city has acted arbitrarily and capriciously by charging an excessive fee, the court 
shall also award the appellant punitive damages in the amount of $500. 

Conflict with Prior FOIA Policies and Procedures; Effective Date 

To the extent that these procedures and guidelines conflict with previous FOIA policies promulgated by the city 
council or administration, these procedures and guidelines are controlling. To the extent that any administrative 
rule promulgated by the FOIA Coordinator subsequent to the adoption of this resolution is found to be in conflict 
with any previous policy promulgated by the city council or the city administration, the administrative rule 
promulgated by the FOIA Coordinator is controlling.  

To the extent that any provision of these procedures and guidelines or any administrative rule promulgated by the 
FOIA Coordinator pertaining to the release of public records is found to be in conflict with any state statute, the 
applicable statute shall control. The FOIA Coordinator is authorized to modify this policy and all previous policies 
adopted by the city council or city administration, and to adopt such administrative rules as he or she may deem 
necessary, to facilitate the legal review and processing of requests for public records made pursuant to Michigan’s 
FOIA statute, provided that such modifications are rules are consistent with state law. The FOIA Coordinator shall 
inform the city council of any change to these policies and guidelines.  

These FOIA Policies and Guidelines become effective July 1, 2015. 

Appendix of City of Swartz Creek FOIA Form(s) 

• Detailed Itemization of Fees Form 

City Council Packet 49 June 22, 2015



FOIA Summary 1 Approved: XXX 2015 

City of Swartz Creek 
Summary of Freedom of Information Procedures and Guidelines 

Consistent with Public Act 563 of 2014 amending the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), the following is the Written 
Public Summary of the city’s FOIA Procedures and Guidelines relevant to the general public. 

Submitting a FOIA request to the City of Swartz Creek 

 Requests to inspect or obtain copies of public records prepared, owned, used, possessed or retained by the City 
of Swartz Creek must be submitted in writing. 

 A request must sufficiently describe a public record so as to enable the city to locate it. 
 No specific form to submit a written request is required.  
 Written requests can be made in person by delivery to the city office in person or by mail. 
 Requests can be made by facsimile by calling 810.635.2887. 
 Requests submitted by email should contain the term “FOIA” in the subject line and be sent 

to azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org. 

Note: If you are serving a sentence of imprisonment in a local, state, or federal correctional facility you are not entitled to 
submit a request for a public record.  

Standard responses for a FOIA request? 

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a FOIA request, the city will issue a response. If a request is received by 
facsimile or e-mail, the request is deemed to have been received on the following business day. The city will respond to 
your request in one of the following ways: 

 Grant the request. 
 Issue a written notice denying the request. 
 Grant the request in part and issue a written notice denying in part the request. 
 Issue a notice indicated that due to the nature of the request the city needs an additional ten (10) business days 

to respond. 
 Issue a written notice indicated that the public record requested is available at no charge on the city’s webpage. 

Deposit requirements? 

If the city has made a good faith calculation that the total fee for processing the request exceeds $50.00, the city will 
require a deposit in the amount of 50% of the total estimated fee. When the city requests the deposit, it will provide you a 
non-binding best efforts estimate of how long it will take to process the request following receipt by the city of your 
deposit.  

If the city receives a request from a person who has not paid the city for copies of public records made in fulfillment of a 
previously granted written request, the city will require a deposit of 100% of the estimated processing fee before it begins 
to search for the public records for any subsequent written request when all of the following conditions exist: 

 the final fee for the prior written request is not more than 105% of the estimated fee; 
 the public records made available contained the information sought in the prior written request and remain in the 

city’s possession;  
 the public records were made available to the individual, subject to payment, within the time frame estimated by 

the city to provide the records; 
 90 days have passed since the city notified the individual in writing that the public records were available for 

pickup or mailing; 
 the individual is unable to show proof of prior payment to the city; and 
 the city has calculated an estimated detailed itemization that is the basis for the current written request’s 

increased fee deposit. 

The city will not require the 100% estimated fee deposit if any of the following apply: 

 the person making the request is able to show proof of prior payment in full to the city; 
 the city is subsequently paid in full for all applicable prior written requests; or 
 365 days have passed since the person made the request for which full payment was not remitted to the city. 

City Council Packet 50 June 22, 2015

mailto:azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org


FOIA Summary 2 Approved: XXX 2015 

Calculation of FOIA fees? 

A fee will not be charged for the cost of search, examination, review and the deletion and separation of exempt from 
nonexempt information unless failure to charge a fee would result in unreasonably high costs to the city because of the 
nature of the request in the particular instance, and the city spec8fically identifies the nature of the unreasonably high 
costs. 

The Michigan FOIA statue permits the city to assess and collect a fee for six designated processing components. The city 
may charge for the following costs associated with processing a request: 

 Labor costs associated with searching for, locating, and examining a requested public record. 
 Labor costs associated with a review of a record to separate and delete information exempt from disclosure of 

information which is disclosed. 
 The cost of computer discs or other digital media when the requester asks for records in non-paper physical 

media. 
 The cost of duplication of publication, not including labor, of paper copies of public records 
 Labor costs associated with the duplication or publication, which includes making paper copies, making digital 

copies, or transferring digital public records to non-paper physical media or through the internet. 
 The cost to mail or send a public record to a requestor. 

Labor Costs 

 Estimated and charged labor costs will be allotted 15 minute increments with all partial time increments rounded 
down. 

 Labor costs will be charged at the hourly wage of the lowest-paid city employee capable of doing the work in the 
specific fee category, regardless of who actually performs the work. 

 Labor costs will also include a charge to cover or partially cover the cost of fringe benefits. 

Non-paper Physical Media 

 The cost for records provided on non-paper physical media, such as computer discs, computer tapes, USB 
memory, or other digital media will be at the actual and most reasonably economical cost for the non-paper 
media. 

 This cost will only be assessed if the city has the technology capability necessary to provide the public record in 
the requested non-paper physical media format. 

Paper Copies 

 Paper copies of public records made on standard letter (8.5 x11) or legal (8.5 x 14) sized paper will not exceed 
$0.10 per sheet of paper. Copies for non-standard sized sheets will reflect the actual cost of reproduction. 

 The city may provide records using double-sided printing, if cost-saving and available. 

Mailing Costs 

 The cost to mail public records will use a reasonably economical and justified means. 
 The city may charge for the least expensive form of postal delivery confirmation. 
 No cost will be made for expedited shipping or insurance unless requested. 

FOIA processing fee reduction 

The city may waive or reduce the fee associated with a request when the city determines that to do so is in the public 
interest because release of the information is considered as primarily benefitting the general public. 

The city will waive the first $20.00 of the processing fee for a request if you submit an affidavit stating that you are: 

 indigent and receiving specific public assistance; or 
 if not receiving public assistance, stating facts demonstrating an inability to pay because of indigency. 

You are not eligible to receive the $20.00 waiver if you: 

 have previously received discounted copies of public records from the city twice during the calendar year; or 
 are requesting information on behalf of other persons who are offering or providing payment to you to make the 

request. 

City Council Packet 51 June 22, 2015



FOIA Summary 3 Approved: XXX 2015 

An affidavit is a sworn statement.  

The city will waive the fee for a nonprofit organization which meets all of the following conditions: 

 the organization is designated by the state under federal law to carry out activities under the Developmental 
Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 2000 and the Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental 
Illness Act; 

 the request is made directly on behalf of the organization or its clients; 
 the request is made for a reason wholly consistent with the provisions of federal law under Section 931 of the 

Mental Health Code; and 
 the request is accompanied by documentation of the organization’s designation by the state. 

Appeals for denial of a public record or an excessive fee? 

Appeal of a Denial of a Public Record 

If you believe that all or a portion of a public record has not been disclosed or has been improperly exempted from 
disclosure, you may file an appeal of the denial with the city council. The appeal must be in writing, specifically state the 
word “appeal” and identify the reason or reasons you are seeking a reversal of the denial. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving the appeal (defined as the first regular meeting of the council after submission), 
the city manager or designee will respond in writing by: 

 reversing the disclosure denial; 
 upholding the disclosure denial; or 
 reverse the disclosure denial in part and uphold the disclosure in part. 

Whether or not you submitted an appeal of a denial to the city council, you may file a civil action in circuit court within 180 
days after the city’s final determination to deny your request.  

Appeal of an Excessive FOIA Processing Fee 

If you believe that the fee charged by the city to process your FOIA request exceeds the amount permitted by state law, 
you must first submit a written appeal for a fee reduction to the city council. The appeal must be in writing, specifically 
state the word “appeal” and identify how the required fee exceeds the amount permitted. 

Within ten (10) business days after receiving the appeal, the city manager or designee will respond in writing by: 

 waiving the fee; 
 reducing the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis that supports the remaining fee; 
 upholding the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis that supports the required fee; or 
 issuing a notice detailing the reason or reasons for extending for not more than ten (10) business days the period 

during which the city manager or designee will respond to the written appeal. 

Within forty-five (45) days after receiving notice of the determination of the processing fee appeal, you may commence a 
civil action in circuit court for a fee reduction. 

Further Information 

This is a summary of the City of Swartz Creek’s FOIA Procedures and Guidelines. For more details, the City of Swartz 
Creek FOIA Procedures and Guidelines are available at no charge at the city office and on the city’s website 
at www.cityofswartzcreek.org. 

 

City Council Packet 52 June 22, 2015

http://www.cityofswartzcreek.org/


Component Cost Calculation Total
Hourly Rate of the lowest paid employee capable of 
perfomring the search, location, and examination $8.15
Fringe multiplier (not to exceed actual cost or 50%, whichever 
is less 1.1
Hourly wage with fringe multiplier $8.97

Hourly overtime, if stipulated by requestor, excluding fringe $12.23
Cost for 15 minute interval $2.24
Number of 15 minute increments, rounded down 0
Total component labor cost $0.00

Hourly Rate of the lowest paid employee capable of 
perfomring the search, location, and examination $8.15
Fringe multiplier (not to exceed actual cost or 50%, whichever 
is less 1.1
Hourly wage with fringe multiplier $8.97

Hourly overtime, if stipulated by requestor, excluding fringe $12.23
Cost for 15 minute interval $2.24
Number of 15 minute increments, rounded down 0
Total component labor cost $0.00

Name of person/firm:

Hourly rate (may not exceed 6 times state minimum wage) $25.00
Cost for 15 minute interval $6.25
Number of 15 minute increments, rounded down 0
Total component labor cost $0.00

Hourly Rate of the lowest paid employee capable of 
perfomring the search, location, and examination $8.15
Fringe multiplier (not to exceed actual cost or 50%, whichever 
is less 1.10
Hourly wage with fringe multiplier $8.97

Hourly overtime, if stipulated by requestor, excluding fringe $12.23
Cost for 15 minute interval $2.24
Number of 15 minute increments, rounded down 0
Total component labor cost $0.00

FOIA Fee Itemization Form

Labor Costs - Employee Redaction

Labor Costs - Search, Location, and 
Examination of Records

Labor Costs - Contracted 
Redaction

Labor Costs - Duplication, Copying, 
and Transferring Records to Media

City Council Packet 53 June 22, 2015



Postage $0.00
Least expenisve delivery confirmation $0.00
Cost of expedited shipping, if requested $0.00
Cost of insurance, if requested $0.00
Total of component $0.00

Flash drives $0.00
Computuers discs $0.00
Other media $0.00
Total of component $0.00

Number of letter (8.5 x 11) sheets 0
Number of legal (8.5 x 14) sheets 0
Alt paper one cost $0.25
Alt paper one number of sheets 0
Alt paper two cost $0.25
Alt paper two number of sheets 0
Total of component $0.00

Less indigency reduction if applicable (-$20.00) $0.00
Less amount determined to be waived to benefit public 
interest $0.00
Late response reduction (.5% for each day, max 50%) $0.00
Total of component $0.00

Deposit Less any good-faith deposit received $0.00

Total Due $0.00

Non-Paper Physical Media

Paper Copies

Waivers and Reductions

Mailing

City Council Packet 54 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 55 June 22, 2015



 Agreement 
 
 This Agreement, dated ________, 2015, is between the City of Swartz Creek, a home 
rule city, whose address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“the City”), Woods 
& Sons Investment, LLC, whose address is 14068 Weir Road, Clio, MI 48420 (“Landowner A”) 
and Ronald J. & Angela Carr, whose address is 5029 Third Street, Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
(“Landowner B”). 
 
 Recitals 
 

WHEREAS, 
 
 The City owns property commonly identified as 5017 Third Street, Swartz Creek, MI 
48473 (PID 58-01-502-077) (“the Parent Parcel”), that is located between two parcels: Existing 
Parcel A, commonly identified as 5015 Third Street, Swartz Creek, MI 48473 (PID 58-01-502-
075) and Existing Parcel B, commonly identified as 5029 Third Street, Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
(PID 58-01-502-079); and 
 
 The City wishes to split the Parent Parcel in equal halves and sell one half to Parcel A 
and the other half to Parcel B, and the owners of Parcels A and B are willing to purchase their 
respective halves on the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES AND 
COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The transfer of each north half of the Parent Parcel will be accomplished by a 
Quit Claim Deed executed by the City in exchange for payment by Landowner of 
Parcel A in the amount of Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($5,500.00). 
 

2. The transfer of each south half of the Parent Parcel will be accomplished by a 
Quit Claim Deed executed by the City in exchange for payment by Landowner of 
Parcel B in the amount of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00). 

 
3. Each Landowner shall then take all steps necessary to combine the one half of 

the Parent Parcel that they receive from the City with Existing Parcels A and B, 
the combination of which will create Resulting Parcels A and B; 

 
4. Resulting Parcels A and B shall have the same zoning classification as Existing 

Parcels A and B, respectively, or each Landowner shall take all steps necessary 
to see that Resulting Parcels A and B have the same zoning classification as 
Existing Parcels A and B; 
 

5. The City shall waive all lot split, lot combination, and zoning fees related to the 
execution of this agreement; 

 
6. The City shall not affirm lot boundaries. Each Landowner maintains the right to 

perform a land survey at their own expense; 
 
7. The Landowner of Existing Parcel A shall construct and maintain a six-foot 

screening fence along the south lot line of Existing Parcel A as permitted by 
ordinance; 

City Council Packet 56 June 22, 2015



  
8. The Landowner of Existing Parcel A, and his successors and assigns, shall be 

prohibited from maintaining uses and activities on the property of an industrial 
nature, including vehicle repair, but not including the storage of vehicles and 
trailers that are operable, licensed and insured.  The Quit Claim Deed to the 
Landowner of Existing Parcel A shall contain language expressing these 
restrictions on the use and activities of the property; 

 
9. The Executed Deeds shall be held in escrow until all terms and conditions of this 

Agreement are satisfied, at such time they shall be released to Landowners. 
 
The sale of each half of the Parent Parcel will result in two new parcels, being Resulting Parcel 
A and Resulting Parcel B. 
 
LANDOWNER A:     SELLER: 
 
WOODS & SONS INVESTMENT, LLC,   CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, a Michigan 
a Michigan Limited Liability Company  Municipal Corporation, 
 
 
By: __________________________        By: _____________________________ 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
By: __________________________       By: _____________________________ 
       Its City Clerk 
 
Witness:      Witness: 
 
_____________________________   ________________________________ 
 
 
LANDOWNER B:      
ANGELA J. & RONALD M. CARR, 
a married couple       
        
 
By: __________________________        
 
        
 
By: __________________________       
        
 
Witness:       
 
_____________________________   
 
 
Approved as to form: 
Michael J. Gildner, City Attorney 

City Council Packet 57 June 22, 2015



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On ________, 2015, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose address is 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Grantor”), quitclaims to Woods & Sons Investment, 
LLC, whose address is 14068 Weir Road, Clio, MI 48420, (“Grantee”), the real property 
commonly known as the north half of 5017 Third Street, in the City of Swartz Creek, County of 
Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

THE NORTH 46.5 FT OF THE WEST 140 FT OF LOT 4 & WEST 140 FT OF NORTH ½ OF 
LOT 5 HOUSTON MILLER CHAMBERS PLAT NO 1(77) 

 
(“the Property”), the north 46.5’ of Parcel No. 58-36-676-040 (5017 Third Street) 
 
For a sum of Five Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($5,500.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of taxes not 
yet due and payable, including the following use restrictions: 
 
The Grantee his successors and assigns, shall be prohibited from maintaining uses and 
activities on the property of an industrial nature, including vehicle repair, but not including the 
storage of vehicles and trailers that are operable, licensed and insured.   
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that Grantee will 
use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement executed by the parties 
and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is not used and developed as such, 
all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ____________   ____________________________ 
      By:         
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ____ 2015, by the City 
of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 

City Council Packet 58 June 22, 2015



QUITCLAIM DEED 
 
 On ________, 2015, the City of Swartz Creek, a home rule city, whose address is 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (“Grantor”), quitclaims to Ronald J. & Angela Carr, 
whose address is 5029 Third Street, Swartz Creek, MI 48473, (“Grantee”), the real property 
commonly known as the south half of 5017 Third Street, in the City of Swartz Creek, County of 
Genesee, Michigan, and described as: 
 

THE SOUTH 46.5 FT OF THE WEST 140 FT OF LOT 4 & WEST 140 FT OF NORTH ½ OF 
LOT 5 HOUSTON MILLER CHAMBERS PLAT NO 1(77) 

 
(“the Property”), the south 46.5’ of Parcel No. 58-36-676-040 (5017 Third Street) 
 
For a sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00), 
      
subject to any easements and building and use restrictions of record and the lien of taxes not 
yet due and payable, including the following use restrictions: 
 
This transfer is exempt from real estate transfer taxes under MCL 207.526(a) and 207.505(a). 
 
This transfer is being made to Grantee with the understanding and agreement that Grantee will 
use and develop the Property as specified in the Purchase Agreement executed by the parties 
and on file at City Offices and, in the event that the Property is not used and developed as such, 
all right, title and interest in the Property will revert to the City. 
 
      City of Swartz Creek 
 
Dated: ____________   ____________________________ 
      By:         
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN} 
COUNTY OF GENESEE} 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of ____ 2015, by the City 
of Swartz Creek, by __________________, Its ______________.                                       
 
                                                                               
Notary Public, Genesee County, Michigan 
Acting in Genesee County, Michigan 
My commission expires: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
When Recorded Return to    Prepared By: 
and send subsequent tax bills to:   Michael J. Gildner 
       Simen, Figura & Parker, P.L.C. 
       5206 Gateway Centre, Suite 200 
       Flint, Michigan 48507 
       (810) 235-9000 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Tax Parcel No. ___________ Recording Fee $_______   Revenue Stamps 

City Council Packet 59 June 22, 2015



1

Adam Zettel

From: Robert Crites <criteslaw@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Tuesday, May 26, 2015 3:28 PM
To: azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org
Subject: 5017 Third St

   
Law Office Of 

ROBERT M. CRITES 
                                                                             1030 S. Grand Traverse, Flint, MI 48502 
                                                                                        Flint, MI 48502 
                                                                        (810) 767-5252 / fax (810) 767-3598 
______________________________________________________________________
___________ 
SPECIALIZING FOR OVER 25 YEARS IN SOCIAL SECURITY DISABILITY CLAIMS, WORKERS COMPENSATION, INSURANCE CLAIMS, 
DISPUTED LIABILITY                                                                                               CLAIMS, ESTATES AND CRIMINAL 
DEFENSE                                 
  
  
  
May 26, 2015      Via email        
     azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org 
  
Mr. Adam Zettel, City Manager 
City of Swartz Creek 
8083 Civic Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI  48473-1377 
  
Re: 5017 Third Street 
  
Dear Mr. Zettel: 
  
Please be advised I am interested in purchasing a portion of the property which was formerly owned 
by Lee Eckstein and has reverted to the City of Swartz Creek for non-payment of taxes, which is 
located at 5017 Third Street just South of the Woods Collision Property. 
  
It is my understanding that it is the desire of the council to split the lot and allow the residents that 
own the property to the South to buy 1/2 to 2/3 of the lot and to sell the remainder of the lot which 
includes the garage / pole barn to another buyer.   
  
I had an occasion to talk to the folks who would presumably end up with the South portion of the lot 
this weekend and it is my impression that they think what they would be buying would be worth 
between $2,000.00 - $2,500.00.   To be honest, that sounds about right to me.  It is also true that as 
a practical matter it would probably be worth more to them than anyone else based on its location.  
  
I understand the North portion of the lot would be worth considerably more based on the fact that 
the pole barn appears to be in pretty good shape.  I have not, however, had an opportunity to 

City Council Packet 60 June 22, 2015



2

inspect the inside of the pole barn nor do a close inspection of the roof.   An additional problem is 
that the driveway is in terrible shape and would have to be reconstructed.   It is my understanding 
that the City wants whoever buys the North portion of the property to construct a fence which 
defines the boundary of the split.  At this point I don’t know what it is contemplated with regard to 
the amount of frontage that would be sold to each party.  
  
As I indicated the last time I talked with you, I happened to have a brief conversation with Woods 
during which he indicated that he had his property surveyed and that his South lot line was in about 
the middle of the drive way which services the lot in question, but more particularly the pole barn.  If 
that’s the case, he may think that part of the pole barn sits on his property as well.   If he doesn’t 
end up with the pole barn he is not going to be a happy camper and I can see litigation down the 
road or perhaps he would have to be bought out to avoid a problem.   It is certainly true that I can 
litigate cheaper than he can, but it is also true that at some point any judge is going to say why don’t 
you pay him “X” number of dollars to put this thing to bed.  
  
If we can define the Southern boundary of the Northern portion of the split and the location of the 
Northern boundary of the split can be identified and is satisfactory and if a thorough examination of 
the building doesn’t reveal any serious problems, I would be willing to pay $8,000.00 for the 
Northern split and maybe a little more.  I would want to make sure that the title was perfectible and 
in that regard would want to have a policy of title insurance.  
  
The last time we talked you indicated that in view of the dimensions of the lot that the barn could not 
under current zoning be used for storage.  That issue would have to be resolved.  However, I would 
think that if the City wants to sell that property to anybody but Woods, who I suppose could 
incorporate the property into that which he already owns, arrangements would have to be made to 
allow the utilization of the building.  One other issue, of course, would be the valuation your assessor 
would put on the property.  Based on what I have seen there doesn’t seem to be much relationship 
between her assessed values and the amount that a piece of property would sell for in the real world.
  
The bottom line is that I would like to inspect the property (inside) and then make a written offer 
subject to a clear definition of the North and South lot lines and a commitment from the City with 
regard to utilization.   
  
I am available for an inspection and/or further discussions at any time during the week and/or 
weekends.  I can be reached at the business number above or at home (810) 635-7953. 
  
Thank you.  
  
Sincerely, 
  
Robert M. Crites  

City Council Packet 61 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 62 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 63 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 64 June 22, 2015



Ingalls Morris
h

Wade

Miller

H
ol

la
nd

H
ayes

1s
t

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.015 0.03 0.045 0.060.0075

Miles ®
City Council Packet 65 June 22, 2015

azettel
Callout
5012 Holland Drive



He
rit

ag
e

H

e r ita

ge Bainbridge

H
er

ita
ge

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.040.005

Miles ®
City Council Packet 66 June 22, 2015

azettel
Text Box
Heritage Village Lots



Oakview

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

Don Shenk

Worchester

Helm
sley

Birc
hc

re
st

Va
lle

yv
ie

w

Se
ym

ou
r

G
re

en
le

af

C
ardigan

Young

Durwood

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.035 0.07 0.105 0.140.0175

Miles ®
City Council Packet 67 June 22, 2015

azettel
Text Box
Winchester Woods Lots



City Council Packet 68 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 69 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 70 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 71 June 22, 2015

azettel
Rectangle

azettel
Callout
Scope item complete

azettel
Text Box
$10,827.96

azettel
Callout
Remaining cost

azettel
Text Box
Change Order for Bristol Road Cuts



City Council Packet 72 June 22, 2015



 
 
 

memorandum 
 
 

 

Date: June 16, 2015 

 
 

To: Adam Zettel, AICP 

cc: Tom Svrcek 

From: Andy Harris 

 
 

  Re: Miller Road Milling and Resurfacing at Elms Road 

 
 

The Contractor has agreed to complete the additional work at the Elms Road intersection at the 
current contract unit prices.  The work is anticipated to be completed during the Morrish to Elms 
phase of this project.  This work will be paid for under a separate agreement between the City and 
the Contractor and will not be part of the contract. 
 
We have measured and quantified the additional work.  The estimated cost to complete the work is 
as follows: 
 
Additional area to be milled and resurfaced = 609 Syd (see attached sketch) 
 
Cold Milling HMA Surface (1.5”) – 609 Syd @ $0.74/Syd      = $450.66 
HMA, 4C (1.5”) – 56 Ton @ $70.19/Ton       = $3,930.64 
Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 6 inch, Crosswalk – 48 ft @ $2.35/ft    = $112.80 
Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, 24 inch, Stop Bar – 12 ft @ $10.15/ft    = $121.80 
Pavt Mrkg, Ovly Cold Plastic, Thru and Rt Turn Arrow Sym – 1 Ea @ $155.00/Ea  = $155.00 
Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 4 inch, White – 75 ft @ $0.39/ft    = $29.25 
 
Total            = $4800.15 

 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Prepared by, 
OHM Advisors 
 

 
 
Andy Harris 
Project Manager 

City Council Packet 73 June 22, 2015

azettel
Text Box
Change Order for Elms and Miller



City Council Packet 74 June 22, 2015



Phone: 269-903-2590 1919 East Kilgore Service Road Kalamazoo, MI 49001 Fax: 269-903-2591 

 
 
Commission:    7%   Biddergy Real Estate Auction Contract 
 
This agreement made on _______________ 2015, between ________________________ whose address is _______________________ (Owner) and 
Biddergy LLC, whose address is 1919 E Kilgore Service Road Kalamazoo, MI 49001. (Auctioneer) 
DESCRIPTION OF ITEMS: 
 

Property Address:  3386 Dye Road, Flint, MI 48507 (Parcel #: 25-58-29-551-026) 

     3350 Dye Road, Flint, MI 48507; (Parcel #: 25-58-29-551-028) 
 
Marketing Fee:  $500 
 
It is agreed as follows: 
Employment: The Owner hereby employs the Auctioneer to sell at public auction the goods listed in the schedule above and/or annexed hereto, such sale to be held on 
_________________ 2015. The Auctioneer hereby accepts such employment on the terms herein set forth. 
 

Compensation: The Owner shall pay to the Auctioneer as his compensation the sum of  $NA    per lot entry fee and in addition a commission of     7   % of the selling price of all 

goods actually sold at the auction payable out of the gross amount realized at the sale. If any of the property listed above and/or annexed hereto schedule is withdrawn from the 

auction for any case, or has a minimum set that is not met, the Owner agrees to pay a buyback of $500  if no sale is completed.  This contract, the terms and conditions, and the 
applicable rates listed above are hereby in effect for this and all future sales conducted through Biddergy.com. 
 
Advertising Sale: The Auctioneer shall advertise the auction in newspapers, online, trade journals, and other matter in which ordinarily advertises such sale. 
 
Duties of Auctioneer: The Auctioneer at its own expense shall prepare the goods to be sold at the place of sale in a manner calculated to induce buyers to make bids thereon, shall 
furnish such assistance and other help as may be necessary to handle efficiently the sale and delivery of the property, and shall so all other things necessary to effect an advantageous 
sale of the goods, in the Auctioneer's sole discretion. Auctioneer does not guarantee a sale and auctioneer is not responsible if Owner and buyer at the auction sale do not comply with 
agreement, or in the event of non-delivery of property to Owner to any such buyer. 
 
Authority of Auctioneer: The Auctioneer shall have full authority to sign any memorandum of sale of behalf of Owner and to receive from the purchasers of such goods the purchase 
price thereof as agent for the Owner, or in lieu thereof a deposit of the purchase price, to be given as earnest money to bind the purchase. 
 
Duties of Owner: Owner shall cooperate with and further interests of the Auctioneer in performing its duties under and pursuant to this agreement as required by law and by this 
agreement, and shall refrain from doing any act that would tend to interfere with Auctioneer in performing such duties. Owner guarantees that all items are without liens.   Owner to list 
all creditors or secured parties ________________________. Any misrepresentation by the Owner as to condition or description of items will allow Biddergy to make adjustments on 
the selling price at its discretion. 
 
Liability: Owner agrees to maintain insurance on all items and holds Biddergy harmless for any damage or any sort of liability. 
 
Accounting: At the completion of such sale, the Auctioneer shall furnish to the Owner a complete list of all the goods sold by him, together with sales prices thereof, and after deducting 
there from the amounts due him pursuant to this agreement, shall pay to the Owner the net amount due to the Owner.  In witness whereof, the parties have signed the agreement. 
 
Governing Law: This agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. Venue shall be in Kalamazoo County, Michigan. 
 
Attorneys' Fees: In the event of a dispute involving this agreement, Owner shall pay the Auctioneer in addition to all sums owed to Auctioneer, a reasonable sum for Auctioneer's 
attorney fees. 
 
Subject to Terms and Conditions: This agreement is subject to Terms and Conditions as identified at www.biddergy.com which said Terms and Conditions are incorporated into this 
agreement by reference. 

 

Biddergy Contact:   Derek Rizor    Seller (Print):  _________________________________ 

Date:       06-12-15   Seller (Sign):   _________________________________ 

Contact #:         269-370-1139   Company: _________________________________ 

       Address:             _________________________________ 

City, State, Zip:    ________________________________ 

       Phone:     _________________________________ 

       Email:  _________________________________ 

       Biddergy Username: __________________________    

For Internal Use Only 

 

Received by:_____________________ 

 

Lotted by:_______________________ 

City Council Packet 75 June 22, 2015

Derek
Typewriter
*Properties to be listed "Subject to Approval" with Seller reserving right to accept or reject high bid

Derek
Typewriter

Derek
Textbox
6%

Derek
Textbox
6

http://www.biddergy.com/
azettel
Text Box
Dye Road Auction Option



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

1 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 76 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

2 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 77 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

3 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 78 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

4 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 79 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

5 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 80 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

6 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 81 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

7 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 82 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

8 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 83 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

9 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 84 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

10 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 85 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

11 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 86 June 22, 2015



Biddergy - Consignment and Liquidation Auctions https://www.biddergy.com/terms.asp

12 of 12 6/17/2015 3:46 PM

City Council Packet 87 June 22, 2015



Norko

D
ye

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.080.01

Miles® 3386 Dye RoadCity Council Packet 88 June 22, 2015

azettel
Callout
3350 Dye

azettel
Callout
3386 Dye

azettel
Callout
Adjacent Owner

azettel
Text Box
GM Operations

azettel
Text Box
GM Entrance



MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF MICHIGAN
ANNUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORT DECEMBER 31, 2014
SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

City Council Packet 89 June 22, 2015



CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 2 of 24

Spring, 2015

Swartz Creek, City of

In care of:
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Michigan
1134 Municipal Way
Lansing, Michigan 48917

This report presents the results of the Annual Actuarial Valuation, prepared as of December 31, 2014.
The report includes the determination of liabilities and contribution rates resulting from the participation
of Swartz Creek, City of (2504) in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan (“MERS”).
MERS is a nonprofit organization, independent from the State, that has provided retirement plans for
municipal employees for more than 65 years. Swartz Creek, City of is responsible for the employer
contributions needed to provide MERS benefits for its employees and former employees under the
Michigan Constitution and the MERS Plan Document.

The purpose of the December 31, 2014 annual actuarial valuation is to:
• Measure funding progress
• Establish contribution requirements for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016
• Provide actuarial information in connection with applicable Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) statements

This valuation report should not be relied upon for any other purpose. Reliance on information
contained in this report by anyone for anything other than the intended purpose could be misleading.

The valuation uses financial data, plan provision data, and participant data as of December 31, 2014
furnished by MERS. In accordance with Actuarial Standards of Practice No. 23, the data was checked
for internal and year to year consistency as well as general reasonableness, but was not otherwise
audited. CBIZ Retirement Plan Services does not assume responsibility for the accuracy or
completeness of the data used in this valuation.

The actuarial assumptions and methods are adopted by the MERS Retirement Board, and are
reviewed every five years in an Experience Study, which will be completed in 2015. Please refer to the
division-specific assumptions described in table(s) in this report, and to the Appendix on the MERS
website at:
www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-2014AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf.

City Council Packet 90 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com
http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-2014AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf


CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 3 of 24

The actuarial assumptions used for this valuation produce results that we believe are reasonable.

To the best of our knowledge, this report is complete and accurate, was prepared in conformity with
generally recognized actuarial principles and practices, with the Actuarial Standards of Practice issued
by the Actuarial Standards Board, and is in compliance with Act No. 220 of the Public Acts of 1996, as
amended, and the MERS Plan Document as revised. All of the undersigned are members of the
American Academy of Actuaries (MAAA), and meet the Qualification Standards of the American
Academy of Actuaries to render the actuarial opinion contained herein. The Retirement Board of the
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Michigan confirms that the System provides for payment
of the required employer contribution as described in Section 20m of Act No. 314 of 1965 (MCL
38.1140m).

This information is purely actuarial in nature. It is not intended to serve as a substitute for legal,
accounting or investment advice.

This report was prepared at the request of the Retirement Board and may be provided only in
its entirety by the municipality to other interested parties (MERS customarily provides the full
report on request to associated third parties such as the auditor for the municipality). CBIZ
Retirement Plan Services is not responsible for the consequences of any unauthorized use.

You should notify MERS if you disagree with anything contained in the report or are aware of any
information that would affect the results of the report that have not been communicated to us. If you
have reason to believe that the plan provisions are incorrectly described, that important plan provisions
relevant to this valuation are not described, that conditions have changed since the calculations were
made, that the information provided in this report is inaccurate or is in anyway incomplete, or if you
need further information in order to make an informed decision on the subject matter in this report,
please contact your Regional Manager at 1.800.767.MERS(6377).

Sincerely,

Alan Sonnanstine, MAAA, ASA
Cathy Nagy, MAAA, FSA
Jim Koss, MAAA, ASA

City Council Packet 91 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 4 of 24

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Executive Summary 5

Employer Contribution Details 11
Table 1

Benefit Provisions 12
Table 2

Participant Summary 13
Table 3

Reported Assets (Market Value) 14
Table 4

Flow of Valuation Assets 15
Table 5

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities and Valuation Assets 16
Table 6

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule 17
Table 7

Division-Based Comparative Schedules 18
Tables 8 and 9

GASB 68 Information 21

Benefit Provision History 22

Plan Provisions, Actuarial Assumptions, and Actuarial Funding Method 24

City Council Packet 92 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 5 of 24

Executive Summary

Funded Ratio and Required Employer Contributions

The MERS Defined Benefit Plan is an agent multiple-employer plan, meaning that assets are pooled
for investment purposes but separate trusts are maintained for each individual employer. Each
municipality is responsible for their own plan liabilities; MERS does not borrow from one municipality’s
account to pay for another.

The funded ratio of a plan is the percentage of the dollar value of the accrued benefits that is covered
by the actuarial value of assets.

Your Funded Ratio:

12/31/2014 12/31/2013

Funded Ratio 88% 94%

Michigan Law requires that pension plans be pre-funded, meaning money is set aside now to pay for
future benefits. Pension plans are usually funded by employer and employee contributions, and
investment income.

How quickly a plan attains the 100% funding goal depends on many factors such as:

• The current funded ratio
• The future experience of the plan
• The amortization period

It is more important to look at the trend in the funded ratio over a period of time than at a particular
point in time.

City Council Packet 93 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 6 of 24

Your Required Employer Contributions:

Your minimum required employer contributions are shown in the following table. Employee
contributions, if any, are in addition to the required employer contributions.

Valuation Date:

Percentage of Payroll Monthly $ Based on Valuation Payroll

12/31/2014 12/31/2013 12/31/2014 12/31/2013

Fiscal Year Beginning: July 1, 2016 July 1, 2015 July 1, 2016 July 1, 2015

Division

01 - AFSCME - - $ 3,833 $ 2,607
02 - Pol FOP 16.47% 19.87% 5,030 3,490
10 - Sprvsrs - - 4,321 0

Municipality Total $ 13,184 $ 6,097

Employee contribution rates reflected in the valuations are shown below:

Valuation Date:

Employee Contribution Rate

12/31/2014 12/31/2013

Division

01 - AFSCME 2.00% 2.00%
02 - Pol FOP 2.50% 2.50%
10 - Sprvsrs 0.00% 4.00%

For employee contribution rates that are not flat percentages, the rate shown is a weighted average
flat employee contribution rate.

You may contribute more than the minimum required contributions, as these additional contributions
will earn investment income, and later you may have to contribute less than otherwise. MERS strongly
encourages employers to contribute more than the minimum contribution shown above.

Assuming that experience of the plan meets actuarial assumptions:

• To accelerate to a 100% funding ratio in 10 years, estimated monthly employer contributions for
the entire employer would be $ 15,554, instead of $ 13,184.

• To accelerate to a 100% funding ratio in 20 years, estimated monthly employer contributions for
the entire employer would be $ 13,514, instead of $ 13,184.

If you are interested in making additional contributions, please contact MERS and they can assist you
with evaluating your options.

How and Why Do These Numbers Change?

City Council Packet 94 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 7 of 24

In a defined benefit plan contributions vary from one annual actuarial valuation to the next as a result of
the following:

• Changes in benefit provisions (see Table 2)
• Changes in actuarial assumptions and methods (see the Appendix)
• Experience of the plan (investment experience and demographic experience); this is the

difference between actual experience of the plan and the actuarial assumptions

Actuarial valuations do not affect the ultimate cost of the plan; the benefit payments (current and
future) determine the cost of the plan. Actuarial valuations only affect the timing of the contributions
into the plan. Because assumptions are for the long term, plan experience will not match the actuarial
assumptions in any given year (except by coincidence). Each annual actuarial valuation will adjust the
required employer contributions up or down based on the prior year’s actual experience.

Comments on the Investment Markets

At this time, MERS maintains the 8% annual return assumption on investments in the belief that over
the long-term this is achievable. For example, MERS' 30 year return was 9.17% on December 31,
2014. The MERS portfolio returned 6.49% in 2014; the two year (10.54%), three year (10.73%), four
year (8.48%), and five year (9.59%) returns all exceed the 8% annual return assumption. When
comparing these actual returns to the 8% net return assumption, deduct roughly .25% from these
actual returns to reflect administrative expenses. It has now been seven years since the peak of the
financial crisis and the stock market decline still weighs down MERS’ medium term returns. This was a
one in fifty year event comparable only to the Stock Market Crash of 1929 during the Great
Depression. The stock market and economy have stabilized since 2008 and are on the long road to
recovery. MERS regularly monitors the investment return assumption to make sure it is reasonable
compared to long term expectations.

The actuarial value of assets, used to determine both your funded ratio and your required employer
contribution, is based on a 10-year smoothed value of assets. Only a portion (seven-tenths, for 2008
through 2014) of the 2008 investment market losses was recognized in this actuarial valuation report.
This reduces the volatility of the valuation results, which affects your required employer contribution
and funded ratio. The smoothed actuarial rate of return for 2014 was 5.90%.

As of December 31, 2014 the actuarial value of assets is 106% of market value. This means that
meeting the actuarial assumption in the next few years will require average annual market returns that
exceed the 8% investment return assumption.

If the December 31, 2014 valuation results were based on market value on that date instead of 10-year
smoothed funding value: i) the funded percent of your entire municipality would be 83% (instead of
88%); and ii) your total employer contribution requirement for the fiscal year starting July 1, 2016 would
be $ 239,916 (instead of $ 158,208).

City Council Packet 95 June 22, 2015

http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-2014AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf
http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 8 of 24

The asset smoothing method is a powerful tool for reducing the volatility of your required employer
contributions. However, if the current 6% difference between the smoothed value and the market
value of assets is not made up, the result would be gradual increases in your employer
contribution requirement over the next few years (to around the levels described above).

Risk Characteristics of Defined Benefit Plans

It is important to understand that retirement plans, by their nature, are exposed to certain risks. While
risks cannot be eliminated entirely, they can be mitigated through various strategies. Below are a few
examples of risk (this is not an all-inclusive list):

• Economic - investment return, wage inflation, etc.
• Demographic - longevity, disability, retirement, etc.
• Plan Sponsor and Employees - contribution volatility, attract/retain employees, etc.

The MERS Retirement Board adopts certain assumptions and methods to mitigate the economic and
demographic risks, and the contribution volatility risks. For example, the investment risk is the largest
economic risk and is mitigated by having a balanced portfolio and a clearly defined investment
strategy. Demographic risks vary based on the age of the workforce and are mitigated by preparing
special studies called experience studies on a regular basis to determine if the assumptions used are
reasonable compared to the experience. Risk may be mitigated through a plan design that provides
benefits that are sustainable in the long run. An Experience Study is completed every five years to
review the assumptions and methods. The next Experience Study will be completed in 2015.

Alternate Scenarios to Estimate the Potential Volatility of Results ("What If Scenarios")

The calculations in this report are based on assumptions about long-term economic and demographic
behavior. These assumptions will never materialize in a given year, except by coincidence. Therefore
the results will vary from one year to the next. The volatility of the results depends upon the
characteristics of the plan. For example:

• Open divisions that have substantial assets compared to their active employee payroll will have
more volatile employer contribution rates due to investment return fluctuations.

• Open divisions that have substantial accrued liability compared to their active employee payroll
will have more volatile employer contribution rates due to demographic experience fluctuations.

• Small divisions will have more volatile contribution patterns than larger divisions because
statistical fluctuations are relatively larger among small populations.

• Shorter amortization periods result in more volatile contribution patterns.

The analysis in this section is intended to review the potential volatility of the actuarial valuation results.
It is important to note that calculations in this report are mathematical estimates based upon
assumptions regarding future events, which may or may not materialize. Actuarial calculations can and
do vary from one valuation to the next, sometimes significantly depending on the group’s size.

City Council Packet 96 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 9 of 24

Many assumptions are important in determining the required employer contributions.

For example:

• Lower investment returns would result in higher required employer contributions, and vice-versa.
• Smaller than projected pay increases would lower required employer contributions.
• Reductions in the number of active employees would lower required contribution dollars, but

would usually increase the contribution rate expressed as a percentage of (the now lower)
payroll.

• Retirements at earlier ages than projected would usually increase required employer
contributions.

• More non-vested terminations of employment than projected would decrease required
contributions.

• More disabilities or survivor (death) benefits than projected would increase required
contributions.

• Longer lifetimes after retirement than projected would increase required employer contributions.

In the table below, we show the impact of varying one actuarial assumption: the future annual rate of
investment return. Lower investment returns would result in higher required employer contributions,
and vice-versa.

The relative impact of each investment return scenario below will vary from year to year, as the
participant demographics change. The impact of each scenario should be analyzed for a given year,
not from year to year. The results in the table are based on the December 31, 2014 valuation, and are
for the municipality in total, not by division.

Assumed Future Annual Smoothed Rate of Investment Return

Lower Future Annual Returns
Valuation

Assumption Higher Returns

12/31/2014 Valuation Results 6% 7% 8% 9%

Accrued Liability $ 10,535,914 $ 9,519,978 $ 8,657,510 $ 7,920,066
Valuation Assets $ 7,657,368 $ 7,657,368 $ 7,657,368 $ 7,657,368
Unfunded Accrued Liability $ 2,878,546 $ 1,862,610 $ 1,000,142 $ 262,698
Funded Ratio 73% 80% 89% 97%

Monthly Normal Cost $ 5,288 $ 3,953 $ 2,921 $ 2,131
Monthly Amortization Payment $ 34,192 $ 21,771 $ 10,263 $ 554

Total Employer Contribution1 $ 39,480 $ 25,724 $ 13,184 $ 4,674

1 If assets exceed accrued liabilities for a division, the division’s amortization payment is negative and is used to reduce the division’s employer
contribution requirement. If the overfunding credit is larger than the normal cost, the division’s full credit is included in the municipality’s amortization
payment above but the division’s total contribution requirement is zero. This can cause the displayed normal cost and amortization payment to not
add up to the displayed total employer contribution.

City Council Packet 97 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 10 of 24

Five Year Projection Scenarios

The following table illustrates the plan's projected liabilities and required employer contributions for the
next five fiscal years, under three actuarial assumptions and future economic scenarios. All three
scenarios take into account the 2008 financial losses that will continue to affect the smoothed rate of
return for the next three years.

Valuation
Year Ending

12/31

Fiscal Year
Beginning

7/1
Actuarial Accrued

Liability Valuation Assets
Funded

Percentage

Required Annual
Employer

Contribution1

           
8% Assumed Interest Discount Rate and Future Annual Market Rate of Return

2014 2016 $ 8,657,510 $ 7,657,368 88% $ 162,684
2015 2017 8,709,000 7,533,000 87% 204,308
2016 2018 8,747,000 7,411,000 85% 257,196
2017 2019 8,765,000 7,295,000 83% 332,088
2018 2020 8,772,000 7,429,000 85% 323,260

           
7% Assumed Interest Discount Rate and Future Annual Market Rate of Return

2014 2016 $ 9,519,978 $ 7,657,368 80% $ 314,664
2015 2017 9,561,000 7,531,000 79% 347,332
2016 2018 9,586,000 7,465,000 78% 389,496
2017 2019 9,589,000 7,516,000 78% 442,060
2018 2020 9,590,000 7,742,000 81% 434,708

           
6% Assumed Interest Discount Rate and Future Annual Market Rate of Return

2014 2016 $ 10,535,914 $ 7,657,368 73% $ 481,452
2015 2017 10,560,000 7,520,000 71% 506,948
2016 2018 10,580,000 7,530,000 71% 540,056
2017 2019 10,570,000 7,738,000 73% 578,560
2018 2020 10,540,000 8,139,000 77% 552,108

1 For an employer with any open divisions, this column will include the impact of projected increases in total payroll from 2014 to the
applicable fiscal year. This will cause the projected contribution for the fiscal year beginning in 2016 to be higher than the Estimated
Annual Contribution shown in Table 1.

The first scenario provides an estimate of required employer contributions based on current actuarial
assumptions, and a projected 8% market return. The other scenarios may be useful if the municipality
chooses to budget more conservatively, and make contributions in addition to the minimum
requirements. The 7% and 6% projections provide an indication of the potential required employer
contribution if MERS were to realize investment returns of 7% and 6% over the long-term.

City Council Packet 98 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 11 of 24

Employer Contribution Details
For the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2016

Table 1

Division

Amort.
Period

for
Unfund.
Liab.4,5

Employer Contributions1

Blended
Employer

Contribut.7

Employee
Contribution

Rate6

Employee
Contribut.

Conversion
Factor2Normal Cost

Unfunded
Accrued
Liability

Total
Required
Employer
Contribut.

Percentage of Payroll
01 - AFSCME 6 - - - 2.00%
02 - Pol FOP 24 8.28% 8.19% 16.47% 2.50% 0.86%
10 - Sprvsrs 6 - - - 0.00%
Estimated Monthly
Contribution3

01 - AFSCME 6 $ 392 $ 3,441 $ 3,833
02 - Pol FOP 24 2,529 2,501 5,030
10 - Sprvsrs 6 0 4,321 4,321
Total Municipality $ 2,921 $ 10,263 $ 13,184
Estimated Annual
Contribution3 $ 35,052 $ 123,156 $ 158,208
1 The above employer contribution requirements are in addition to the employee contributions, if any.

2 If employee contributions are increased/decreased by 1.00% of pay, the employer contribution requirement will decrease/increase by the Employee
Contribution Conversion Factor. The conversion factor is usually under 1%, because employee contributions may be refunded at termination of
employment, and not used to fund retirement pensions. Employer contributions will all be used to fund pensions.

3 For divisions that are open to new hires, estimated contributions are based on valuation payroll. Actual contributions will be based on actual reported
monthly pays, and will be different from the above amounts (usually higher). For divisions that will have no new hires, invoices will be based on the
above dollar amounts which are based on projected fiscal year payroll. See description of Open Divisions and Closed Divisions in the Appendix.

4 If projected assets exceed projected liabilities as of the beginning of the July 1, 2016 fiscal year, the negative unfunded accrued liability is amortized
(spread) over 10 years. This amortization is used to reduce the employer contribution rate. Note that if the overfunding credit is larger than the
normal cost, the full credit is shown above but the total contribution requirement is zero. This will cause the displayed normal cost and unfunded
accrued liability contributions to not add across.

5 If the division is closed to new hires, with new hires not covered by MERS Defined Benefit Plan or Hybrid Plan provisions, the amortization period will
decrease as follows: Under Amortization Option A, the period will decrease by 2 years each valuation year, until it reaches 6 or 5 years. Then it
decreases by 1 year each valuation year until the UAL is paid off. Under Amortization Option B, the period will decrease by 2 years each valuation
year, until it reaches 16 or 15 years. Thereafter, the period will reduce by 1 year each valuation year, until the UAL is paid off. This will result in
amortization payments that increase faster than the usual 4.5% each year. If the division is closed to new hires, with new hires (and transfers)
covered by MERS Defined Benefit Plan or Hybrid Plan provisions, the standard open division amortization period will apply.

6 For employee contribution rates that are not flat percentages, the rate shown is a weighted average flat employee contribution rate.

7 For linked divisions, the employer will be invoiced the Total Required Employer Contribution rate shown above for each linked division (a contribution
rate for the open division; a contribution dollar for the closed-but-linked division), unless the employer elects to contribute the Blended Employer
Contribution rate shown above, by contacting MERS at 800-767-2308.

Please see the Comments on the Investment Markets.

City Council Packet 99 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com
http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-2014AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 12 of 24

Benefit Provisions

Table 2

01 - AFSCME: Closed to new hires
2014 Valuation 2013 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 2.00% Multiplier (no max) 2.00% Multiplier (no max)
Normal Retirement Age: 60 60
Vesting: 10 years 10 years
Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/30 55/30
Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25

55/15 55/15
Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years
Employee Contributions: 2% 2%
DC Plan for New Hires: 7/1/1997 7/1/1997
Act 88: Yes (Adopted 12/10/1970) Yes (Adopted 12/10/1970)

02 - Pol FOP: Open Division
2014 Valuation 2013 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 2.50% Multiplier (80% max) 2.50% Multiplier (80% max)
Normal Retirement Age: 60 60
Vesting: 10 years 10 years
Early Retirement (Unreduced): 55/25 55/25
Early Retirement (Reduced): 50/25 50/25

55/15 55/15
Final Average Compensation: 5 years 5 years
Employee Contributions: 2.50% 2.50%
Act 88: Yes (Adopted 12/10/1970) Yes (Adopted 12/10/1970)

10 - Sprvsrs: Closed to new hires
2014 Valuation 2013 Valuation

Benefit Multiplier: 2.50% Multiplier (80% max) 2.50% Multiplier (80% max)
Normal Retirement Age: 60 60
Vesting: 10 years 10 years
Early Retirement (Unreduced): 50/25 50/25
Early Retirement (Reduced): 55/15 55/15
Final Average Compensation: 3 years 3 years
COLA for Future Retirees: 2.50% (Non-Compound) 2.50% (Non-Compound)
COLA for Current Retirees: 2.50% (Non-Compound) 2.50% (Non-Compound)
Employee Contributions: 4% 4%
DC Plan for New Hires: 7/1/1997 7/1/1997
Act 88: Yes (Adopted 12/10/1970) Yes (Adopted 12/10/1970)

City Council Packet 100 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 13 of 24

Participant Summary

Table 3

Division

2014 Valuation 2013 Valuation 2014 Valuation

Number
Annual
Payroll1 Number

Annual
Payroll1

Average
Age

Average
Benefit

Service2

Average
Eligibility
Service2

01 - AFSCME
Active Employees 2 $ 108,915 3 $ 139,994 57.7 37.0 37.0
Vested Former Employees 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 6 112,968 5 98,283 64.8

02 - Pol FOP
Active Employees 6 $ 366,483 4 $ 210,810 42.8 9.4 9.4
Vested Former Employees 1 9,917 1 9,917 55.4 7.0 8.3
Retirees and Beneficiaries 4 97,475 4 97,475 66.4

10 - Sprvsrs
Active Employees 0 $ 0 2 $ 124,816 0.0 0.0 0.0
Vested Former Employees 0 0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 10 443,865 8 346,003 64.3

Total Municipality
Active Employees 8 $ 475,398 9 $ 475,620 46.5 16.3 16.3
Vested Former Employees 1 9,917 1 9,917 55.4 7.0 8.3
Retirees and Beneficiaries 20 654,308 17 541,761 64.9
Total Participants 29 27

1 Annual payroll for active employees; annual deferred benefits payable for vested former employees; annual benefits being paid for retirees and
beneficiaries.

2 Description can be found under Miscellaneous and Technical Assumptions in the Appendix.

City Council Packet 101 June 22, 2015

http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-2014AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf
http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 14 of 24

Reported Assets (Market Value)

Table 4

Division

2014 Valuation 2013 Valuation
Employer and

Retiree1 Employee2
Employer and

Retiree1 Employee2

01 - AFSCME $ 1,420,632 $ 82,163 $ 1,400,994 $ 86,942
02 - Pol FOP 1,005,969 86,766 985,900 78,773
10 - Sprvsrs 4,628,832 0 4,530,140 180,104
Municipality Total $ 7,055,433 $ 168,929 $ 6,917,034 $ 345,819
Combined Reserves $ 7,224,362 $ 7,262,853
1 Reserve for Employer Contributions and Benefit Payments

2 Reserve for Employee Contributions

The December 31, 2014 valuation assets are equal to 1.059937 times the reported market value of
assets (compared to 1.061840 as of December 31, 2013). The derivation of valuation assets is
described, and detailed calculations of valuation assets are shown, in the Appendix.

City Council Packet 102 June 22, 2015

http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-2014AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf
http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 15 of 24

Flow of Valuation Assets

Table 5
Year Employee Valuation

Ended Employer Contributions Employee Investment Benefit Contribution Net Asset
12/31 Required Additional Contributions Income Payments Refunds Transfers Balance

                 
2004 $ 65,603 $ 18,360 $ 419,158 $ (353,237) $ 0 $ 0 $ 6,653,737
2005 97,447 21,416 415,131 (374,352) 0 0 6,813,379
2006 150,246 22,859 544,195 (384,230) 0 0 7,146,449
2007 191,560 20,130 579,232 (452,612) 0 8,708 7,493,467
2008 269,931 19,852 328,996 (457,016) 0 0 7,655,230

                 
2009 282,204 19,305 338,223 (473,728) 0 0 7,821,234
2010 196,337 17,509 392,938 (527,731) 0 24,509 7,924,796
2011 93,291 $ 5,934 16,224 349,365 (559,713) 0 0 7,829,897
2012 79,273 6 16,443 313,076 (518,919) 0 0 7,719,776
2013 85,735 3 14,323 425,428 (533,278) 0 0 7,711,987

                 
2014 97,181 0 13,279 418,854 (583,933) 0 0 7,657,368

 Notes:  

      Transfers in and out are usually related to the transfer of participants between municipalities, and to employer and employee payments for service credit purchases (if any) that the governing body
      has approved.

      Additional employer contributions, if any, are shown separately starting in 2011. Prior to 2011, additional contributions are combined with the required employer contributions.

      In the actuarial valuation additional employer contributions are combined with required contributions and used to reduce computed future required employer contributions.

City Council Packet 103 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com/


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 16 of 24

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities and Valuation Assets
As of December 31, 2014

Table 6

Division
Actuarial

Accrued Liability Valuation Assets1 Percent Funded

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Accrued
Liabilities

01 - AFSCME
Active Employees $ 664,810 $ 434,999 65.4% $ 229,811
Vested Former Employees 0 0 0.0% 0
Retirees And Beneficiaries 1,157,869 1,157,869 100.0% 0
Pending Refunds 0 0 0.0% 0

Total $ 1,822,679 $ 1,592,868 87.4% $ 229,811
02 - Pol FOP

Active Employees $ 645,145 $ 120,715 18.7% $ 524,430
Vested Former Employees 70,484 70,484 100.0% 0
Retirees And Beneficiaries 964,807 964,807 100.0% 0
Pending Refunds 2,224 2,224 100.0% 0

Total $ 1,682,660 $ 1,158,230 68.8% $ 524,430
10 - Sprvsrs

Active Employees $ 0 $ 0 0.0% $ 0
Vested Former Employees 0 0 0.0% 0
Retirees And Beneficiaries 5,152,171 4,906,270 95.2% 245,901
Pending Refunds 0 0 0.0% 0

Total $ 5,152,171 $ 4,906,270 95.2% $ 245,901
Total Municipality

Active Employees $ 1,309,955 $ 555,714 42.4% $ 754,241
Vested Former Employees 70,484 70,484 100.0% 0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 7,274,847 7,028,946 96.6% 245,901
Pending Refunds 2,224 2,224 100.0% 0
Total Participants $ 8,657,510 $ 7,657,368 88.4% $ 1,000,142

1 Includes both employer and employee assets.

Please see the Comments on the Investment Markets.

See the MERS Fiscal Responsibility Policy on the MERS website at:
http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/PageResources/MERS/PlanDocument/Pension/sec_43c.pdf.

City Council Packet 104 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com
http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/PageResources/MERS/PlanDocument/Pension/sec_43c.pdf


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 17 of 24

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

Table 7

Valuation Date
December 31

Actuarial
Accrued Liability Valuation Assets

Percent
Funded

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Accrued
Liabilities

         
2000 $ 5,952,558 $ 6,195,152 104% $ (242,593)
2001 6,322,161 6,448,199 102% (126,038)
2002 6,789,520 6,344,717 93% 444,803
2003 6,934,536 6,503,853 94% 430,683
2004 7,570,708 6,653,737 88% 916,971

         
2005 7,576,107 6,813,379 90% 762,728
2006 8,013,556 7,146,449 89% 867,107
2007 8,092,795 7,493,467 93% 599,328
2008 8,140,864 7,655,230 94% 485,634
2009 8,337,631 7,821,234 94% 516,397

         
2010 8,532,967 7,924,796 93% 608,171
2011 8,597,380 7,829,897 91% 767,483
2012 8,184,102 7,719,776 94% 464,326
2013 8,235,676 7,711,987 94% 523,689
2014 8,657,510 7,657,368 88% 1,000,142

Notes: Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2000, 2004, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012 actuarial valuations.

City Council Packet 105 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 18 of 24

Division 01 - AFSCME

Table 8-01: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

Valuation Date
December 31

Actuarial
Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Percent Funded

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Accrued
Liabilities

         
2004 $ 1,366,299 $ 1,200,812 88% $ 165,487
2005 1,386,394 1,283,812 93% 102,582
2006 1,485,171 1,385,904 93% 99,267
2007 1,569,442 1,490,370 95% 79,072
2008 1,603,493 1,542,508 96% 60,985

         
2009 1,715,180 1,576,164 92% 139,016
2010 1,736,708 1,574,133 91% 162,575
2011 1,755,979 1,577,034 90% 178,945
2012 1,740,956 1,563,818 90% 177,138
2013 1,758,360 1,579,950 90% 178,410

         
2014 1,822,679 1,592,868 87% 229,811

Notes: Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2004, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-01: Required Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Active Employees Required Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution1 Rate2

         
2004 6 $ 269,805 9.00% 2.00%
2005 6 260,175 $ 1,730 2.00%
2006 5 210,985 $ 1,511 2.00%
2007 4 182,096 $ 1,099 2.00%
2008 4 183,115 $ 1,257 2.00%

         
2009 3 135,983 $ 1,562 2.00%
2010 3 137,886 $ 1,793 2.00%
2011 3 137,139 $ 2,072 2.00%
2012 3 137,577 $ 2,259 2.00%
2013 3 139,994 $ 2,607 2.00%

         
2014 2 108,915 $ 3,833 2.00%

1 For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown. For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

2 For employee contribution rates that are not flat percentages, the rate shown is a weighted average flat employee
contribution rate. For each valuation year, the required employer contribution is based on the employee rate. If the
employee rate changes during the applicable fiscal year, the required employer contribution will be adjusted.

City Council Packet 106 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 19 of 24

Division 02 - Pol FOP

Table 8-02: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

Valuation Date
December 31

Actuarial
Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Percent Funded

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Accrued
Liabilities

         
2004 $ 1,154,685 $ 1,014,829 88% $ 139,856
2005 1,207,078 1,038,731 86% 168,347
2006 1,236,688 1,003,953 81% 232,735
2007 1,233,201 1,065,577 86% 167,624
2008 1,303,814 1,096,857 84% 206,957

         
2009 1,302,013 1,128,957 87% 173,056
2010 1,470,272 1,176,568 80% 293,704
2011 1,511,664 1,156,988 77% 354,676
2012 1,545,374 1,133,808 73% 411,566
2013 1,536,562 1,130,512 74% 406,050

         
2014 1,682,660 1,158,230 69% 524,430

Notes: Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2004, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-02: Required Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Active Employees Required Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution1 Rate2

         
2004 7 $ 363,141 10.47% 2.50%
2005 7 369,604 10.33% 2.50%
2006 6 348,266 10.75% 2.50%
2007 6 340,792 9.87% 2.50%
2008 6 351,407 11.05% 2.50%

         
2009 5 289,944 11.10% 2.50%
2010 4 247,521 14.57% 2.50%
2011 4 252,140 15.80% 2.50%
2012 4 249,811 17.99% 2.50%
2013 4 210,810 19.87% 2.50%

         
2014 6 366,483 16.47% 2.50%

1 For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown. For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

2 For employee contribution rates that are not flat percentages, the rate shown is a weighted average flat employee
contribution rate. For each valuation year, the required employer contribution is based on the employee rate. If the
employee rate changes during the applicable fiscal year, the required employer contribution will be adjusted.

City Council Packet 107 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 20 of 24

Division 10 - Sprvsrs

Table 8-10: Actuarial Accrued Liabilities - Comparative Schedule

Valuation Date
December 31

Actuarial
Accrued Liability Valuation Assets Percent Funded

Unfunded
(Overfunded)

Accrued
Liabilities

         
2004 $ 5,049,724 $ 4,438,096 88% $ 611,628
2005 4,982,635 4,490,836 90% 491,799
2006 5,291,697 4,756,592 90% 535,105
2007 5,290,152 4,937,520 93% 352,632
2008 5,233,557 5,015,865 96% 217,692

         
2009 5,320,438 5,116,113 96% 204,325
2010 5,325,987 5,174,095 97% 151,892
2011 5,329,737 5,095,875 96% 233,862
2012 4,897,772 5,022,150 103% (124,378)
2013 4,940,754 5,001,525 101% (60,771)

         
2014 5,152,171 4,906,270 95% 245,901

Notes: Actuarial assumptions were revised for the 2004, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012 actuarial valuations.

Table 9-10: Required Employer Contributions - Comparative Schedule
Active Employees Required Employee

Valuation Date Annual Employer Contribution

December 31 Number Payroll Contribution1 Rate2

         
2004 3 $ 180,245 22.76% 4.00%
2005 3 169,689 $ 3,553 4.00%
2006 3 187,246 $ 4,449 4.00%
2007 3 188,468 $ 3,087 4.00%
2008 3 186,846 $ 2,630 4.00%

         
2009 3 183,159 $ 2,415 4.00%
2010 3 186,680 $ 2,106 4.00%
2011 3 179,431 $ 2,944 4.00%
2012 3 186,142 $ 0 4.00%
2013 2 124,816 $ 0 4.00%

         
2014 0 0 $ 4,321 0.00%

1 For open divisions, a percent of pay contribution is shown. For closed divisions, a monthly dollar contribution is shown.

2 For employee contribution rates that are not flat percentages, the rate shown is a weighted average flat employee
contribution rate. For each valuation year, the required employer contribution is based on the employee rate. If the
employee rate changes during the applicable fiscal year, the required employer contribution will be adjusted.

City Council Packet 108 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 21 of 24

GASB 68 Information

The following information has been prepared to provide some of the information necessary to complete
GASB Statement No. 68 disclosures. Statement 68 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2014. Additional resources, including an Implementation Guide, are available at www.mersofmich.com .

Actuarial Valuation Date: 12/31/2014

Measurement Date of Total Pension Liability (TPL): 12/31/2014

At 12/31/2014, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits: 20
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 1
Active employees: 8

29

Covered employee payroll: (Needed for Required Supplementary Information) $ 475,398

Total Pension Liability as of 12/31/2013 measurement date: $ 8,335,063

Total Pension Liability as of 12/31/2014 measurement date: $ 8,462,395

 

Service Cost for the year ending on the 12/31/2014 measurement date: $ 45,819

 
 

Change in the Total Pension Liability due to:

- Benefit changes1: $ 0
- Differences between expected and actual experience2: $ 0
- Changes in assumptions2: $ 0

Average expected remaining service lives of all employees (active and inactive): 2
1 A change in liability due to benefit changes is immediately recognized when calculating pension expense for the year.

2 Changes in liability due to differences between actual and expected experience, and changes in assumptions, are recognized in pension
expense over the average remaining service lives of all employees.

 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(7.25%) Rate (8.25%) (9.25%)

Change in Net Pension Liability as of 12/31/2014: $ 828,800 - $ (709,923)

Note: The current discount rate shown for GASB 68 purposes is higher than the MERS assumed rate of return.
This is because for GASB 68 purposes, the discount rate must be gross of administrative expenses, whereas
for funding purposes it is net of administrative expenses.

City Council Packet 109 June 22, 2015

http://www.mersofmich.com
http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 22 of 24

Benefit Provision History

The following benefit provision history is provided by MERS. Any corrections to this history or
discrepancies between this information and information displayed elsewhere in the valuation report
should be reported to MERS. All provisions are listed by date of adoption.

01 - AFSCME
7/1/2004 Benefit F55 (With 30 Years of Service)
7/1/2004 Member Contribution Rate 2.00%
7/1/1997 DC Adoption Date 07-01-1997
7/1/1994 Benefit B-2
7/1/1991 Benefit B-1
7/1/1988 Member Contribution Rate 0.00%

12/10/1970 Covered by Act 88
7/1/1970 Benefit C-1 (Old)
7/1/1966 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)
7/1/1966 10 Year Vesting
7/1/1966 Benefit C (Old)
7/1/1966 Member Contribution Rate 3.00% Under $4,200.00 - Then 5.00%

  Fiscal Month - July

02 - Pol FOP
1/1/2001 Benefit B-4 (80% max)
1/1/2001 Benefit F55 (With 25 Years of Service)
1/1/2001 Member Contribution Rate 2.50%
7/1/1991 Benefit B-3 (80% max)
7/1/1988 Member Contribution Rate 0.00%

12/10/1970 Covered by Act 88
7/1/1970 Benefit C-1 (Old)
7/1/1966 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)
7/1/1966 10 Year Vesting
7/1/1966 Benefit C (Old)
7/1/1966 Member Contribution Rate 3.00% Under $4,200.00 - Then 5.00%

  Fiscal Month - July

10 - Sprvsrs
7/1/1997 DC Adoption Date 07-01-1997
1/1/1992 E2 2.5% COLA for future retirees (07/01/1991)
1/1/1992 E1 2.5% COLA for past retirees (07/01/1991)
7/1/1991 Benefit FAC-3 (3 Year Final Average Compensation)
7/1/1991 Benefit B-4 (80% max)
7/1/1991 Member Contribution Rate 4.00%
7/1/1988 Benefit FAC-5 (5 Year Final Average Compensation)
7/1/1988 10 Year Vesting
7/1/1988 Benefit C-1 (Old)
7/1/1988 Benefit F50 (With 25 Years of Service)
7/1/1988 Member Contribution Rate 1.00%

City Council Packet 110 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 23 of 24

10 - Sprvsrs
12/10/1970 Covered by Act 88

  Fiscal Month - July

City Council Packet 111 June 22, 2015

http://retirement.cbiz.com


SWARTZ CREEK, CITY OF (2504)

CBIZ Retirement Plan Services / 17187 N. Laurel Park Drive, Suite 250 Livonia, MI 48152 / retirement.cbiz.com 
rpc_id: 6523 Page 24 of 24

Plan Provisions, Actuarial Assumptions, and Actuarial Funding Method

Details on MERS plan provisions, actuarial assumptions, and actuarial methodology can be found in
the Appendix. Some actuarial assumptions are specific to this municipality and its divisions. These are
listed below.

Increase in Final Average Compensation

Division
FAC Increase
Assumption

All Divisions 1.00%

Withdrawal Rate Scaling Factor

Division
Withdrawal Rate
Scaling Factor

All Divisions 100%

Miscellaneous and Technical Assumptions

Loads – None.

Amortization Policy for Closed Divisions

Closed Division Amortization Option
All Closed Divisions Option A

City Council Packet 112 June 22, 2015

http://www.mersofmich.com/Portals/0/Assets/Resources/AAV-Appendix/MERS-2014AnnualActuarialValuation-Appendix.pdf
http://retirement.cbiz.com


City Council Packet 113 June 22, 2015



License Search Home Alphabetical Listing

Agencies Online Services Directories Help Center Connect MI.gov

Specially Designated Merchant License

The Michigan Liquor Control Commission (MLCC) exercises complete control of the alcoholic beverage
traffic in Michigan. The MLCC Licensing Division is responsible for processing retail, wholesale and
manufacturing license applications and issuing those licenses approved by the MLCC Commissioners. The
MLCC Licensing Division is also responsible for processing the subsequent renewals of the retail,
wholesale, and manufacturing licenses.

The MLCC Commissioners are appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of the Michigan
Senate. Of the five members, no more than three can be of the same political party. The Commissioners'
terms of office are for four years with rotating expiration dates. Two of the Commissioners (one Democrat
and one Republican) serve as Hearing Commissioners and conduct hearings on violations of the Michigan
Liquor Control Code of 1998 (Code) and Administrative Rules of the MLCC (Rules). The remaining three
Commissioners are designated as the Administrative Commissioners and are responsible for administering
the provisions of the Code and Rules in the areas of licensing, enforcement, purchasing, merchandising, and
distribution.

New! Renewals for these tasks are accessible through the Michigan Business One Stop portal.

A. NAME OF LICENSE OR APPROVAL:

Specially Designated Merchant License

B. STATUTORY AUTHORITY:

Constitution of Michigan of 1963 (Excerpt)

Michigan Liquor Control Code of 1998, Public Act 58 of 1998, as amended

C. APPLICABLE REGULATION:

Michigan Administrative Code Implemented by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission

General Rules (R 436.1001 - 436.1063)

STATE LICENSE SEARCH > ALPHABETICAL LISTING

State License Search - Specially Designated Merchant License http://www.michigan.gov/statelicensesearch/0,4671,7-180-24786-245050...

1 of 7 6/15/2015 4:37 PM

City Council Packet 114 June 22, 2015



Licensing Qualifications, (R 436.1101 - 436.1151)

On-Premises Licenses (R 436.1401 - 436.1438)

Hearings and Appeals Practice Rules (R 436.1901 - 436.1935)

Church or School Hearings (R 436.1951 - 436.1953

Financial Responsibility (R 436.2001 - 436.2021)

D. SUMMARY OF LICENSE/APPROVAL PROCESS:

 1.  Applicability (activities that require the license)

A Specially Designated Merchant (SDM) license is required for an establishment located in Michigan to sell
beer or wine or both for consumption off the licensed premises. The types of businesses that generally have
SDM licenses are grocery stores, drug stores, or convenience food stores. An SDM license may also be
held in conjunction with a Specially Designated Distributor (SDD) license, Class C license, Class B-Hotel
license, Class A-Hotel license, Club license, or Tavern license.

 2.  Pre-Application Requirements

Specially Designated Merchant (SDM) licenses are not subject to any quota established by the Michigan
Liquor Control Code of 1998. However, the Specially Designated Distributor (SDD) license, Class C license,
Class B-Hotel license, Class A-Hotel license, or Tavern license that may be held in conjunction with the SDM
license are subject to a quota established by the Michigan Liquor Control Code of 1998 and may not be
available for issuance in the city, village, or township where the establishment is located.

In order to obtain an SDM license, an approved type of business must be operating or propose to be
operating at the establishment to be licensed. The following are approved types of businesses:

o A grocery store.

o A convenience food store.

o A food specialty store.

o A meat market.

o A delicatessen.

o A drugstore.

o A patent medicine store.

o A tobacconist that does not have motor vehicle fuel pumps.

o A department store that includes 1 or more of the stores listed above.

o A Specially Designated Distributor (SDD).

o A Class C.

o A Class B-Hotel.

o A Club.

State License Search - Specially Designated Merchant License http://www.michigan.gov/statelicensesearch/0,4671,7-180-24786-245050...

2 of 7 6/15/2015 4:37 PM

City Council Packet 115 June 22, 2015



o A Tavern.

o A Class A-Hotel.

 3.  Application Submission Requirements

Completed and executed Application for New Licenses or Application of Buyers for Transfer of Ownership or
Interest in License (LC-687) in the name of the applicant individual, applicant corporation, applicant limited
liability company, applicant general partner, and/or applicant general partner of a limited partnership.

Completed and executed Individual Stockholder, Limited Liability Member or Corporate Stockholder
Questionnaire (LC-621) for each individual, corporation, and/or limited liability company that is a stockholder
of the applicant corporation or member of the applicant limited liability company holding 10% or more interest
in the applicant corporation or applicant limited liability company.

Completed and executed Limited Partners, Stockholders, or Members Statement (LC-38) form for any
individual, corporation, limited liability company, general partner, or limited partner holding less than 10%
interest in an applicant corporation, applicant limited liability company or applicant limited partnership.

Copy of filed Articles of Incorporation for an applicant corporation and filed Articles of Organization and
Operating Agreement for an applicant limited liability company and any amendments. If the corporation or
limited liability is incorporated or organized outside the state of Michigan, a Certificate of Good Standing
from the state of incorporation and a copy of the filed Application for Certificate of Authority to Transact
Business or Conduct Affairs in Michigan (form BCS/CD-560) must be submitted.

Copy of filed Certificate of Limited Partnership and copy of Limited Partnership agreement for an applicant
limited partnership. If the limited partnership is formed outside the state of Michigan, a copy of the filed
Application for Certificate of Authority to Transact Business in Michigan (form BCS/CD-4110 must be
submitted.

Copy of Lease, Option to Lease, Purchase Agreement, or Warranty Deed for the establishment to be
licensed.

Inspection fees of $70.00 for each new license type requested and/or each new license type being
transferred must be submitted. If you are applying for a Class B-Hotel license and a Specially Designated
Merchant license the inspection fees would be $140.00. If you are applying for a Specially Designated
Merchant license only the inspection fees would be $70.00. Please make your check or money order
payable to the STATE OF MICHIGAN.

 4.  Procedures and Time-Frame for Obtaining Permit or Approval

The application is submitted to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission, 7150 Harris Drive, PO Box 30005,
Lansing, Michigan 48909. Upon receipt of the application, the MLCC Licensing Division reviews the forms,
filings, and agreements for the applicant's specific type of business ownership, real estate documents (copy
of lease, option to lease, purchase agreement, land contract, or warranty deed), and a non-refundable
inspection fees of $70 for each license requested. The application is generally reviewed within 5 business
days from when it was received. Based upon the review, the MLCC Licensing Division forwards a Notice of
Deficiency to the applicant indicating additional forms, documents, and/or fees, if any, required to proceed
with the application. No further action is taken on the application until all the required forms, documents, and
fees are received in the MLCC Lansing office.

Upon receipt of all required forms, documents, and fees the MLCC Licensing Division authorizes the
application for investigation. The application file is generally authorized for investigation within 5 to 7
business days after all the required forms, documents, and fees are received. The application file is then
forwarded to the MLCC Enforcement Division District Office where it is assigned to an Enforcement

State License Search - Specially Designated Merchant License http://www.michigan.gov/statelicensesearch/0,4671,7-180-24786-245050...

3 of 7 6/15/2015 4:37 PM

City Council Packet 116 June 22, 2015



investigator. Upon receipt of the application file, the investigator contacts the applicant and advises them of
the documentation necessary to be provided for review. The Enforcement investigator generally contacts
the applicant within 3 to 5 business days from the receipt of the assigned application file. The Enforcement
investigator also contacts the current licensee if the application is to transfer ownership of an existing
Specially Designated Merchant license and advises the current licensee of the documentation necessary to
be provided for review. When the applicant and the current licensee have gathered the requested
documentation, the Enforcement investigator is contacted to schedule an appointment to conduct the
investigation. The Enforcement investigator also releases forms and fingerprint cards to the local law
enforcement agency. The local law enforcement agency's investigation is independent of the MLCC
investigation. It is the responsibility of the applicant to follow-up with the local law enforcement agency to
ensure compliance with all local requirements. The local law enforcement agency forwards its
recommendations directly to the Lansing office of the MLCC.

The investigation conducted by the MLCC Enforcement investigator covers a variety of areas including but
not limited to business ownership structure; background of individuals; projected cost of the
project/transaction; source of finances, including source of any money lender's finances; present ownership
verification; and physical inspection of the establishment, if the physical premises is built and available for
inspection.

Upon completion of the investigation, the MLCC Enforcement investigator will prepare and submit a
preliminary investigation report to the MLCC Enforcement supervisor for review. Upon review and
determination by the Enforcement supervisor that the investigation report is complete, the application file is
returned to the MLCC Licensing Division in Lansing for further processing.

Upon receipt of the investigation report from the MLCC Enforcement Division, and the Police Investigation
Report and fingerprint cards, if required, from the local law enforcement agency, the completed application
file is prepared for review and consideration by the MLCC Administrative Commissioners at a regularly
scheduled Licensing Meeting. The MLCC Administrative Commissioners review the information provided in
the application files to determine whether the application should be approved, denied, or held for further
information. The MLCC Administrative Commissioners advise the Licensing Division of their decision at the
regularly scheduled Licensing Meeting.

The MLCC Licensing Division then prepares an Order based upon the decision of the MLCC Administrative
Commissioners. The applicant is advised of the decisions of the MLCC Administrative Commissioners as
follows:

o If approved a Fee Statement letter or Checklist is prepared requesting the forms, documents and
fees required to complete the application.

o If denied a Notice of Denial together with the MLCC Order advising of the basis of the denial and
the right to an appeal hearing is sent to the applicant.

The applicant, if approved, then completes and returns all requested forms, documents and fees to the
MLCC Lansing office. This includes proceeding with plans to purchase or lease property, complete the
purchase of the existing Specially Designated Merchant licensed business, and/or complete any required
inspections of the proposed licensed establishment by the MLCC Enforcement Division, the local law
enforcement agency, and/or the local governmental body.

The applicant, if denied, determines whether to request an appeal of the denial of the licensing application.
The request for a hearing must be received in the MLCC Lansing office within 20 days from the date of the
mailing of the decision of the denial. Appeal hearings of licensing decisions are generally held in the MLCC
Lansing office on Tuesdays and in the MLCC Farmington office on Thursdays.

 5.  Operational Requirements

The license must be renewed each year by May 1. The license is effective May 1 through April 30. The

State License Search - Specially Designated Merchant License http://www.michigan.gov/statelicensesearch/0,4671,7-180-24786-245050...

4 of 7 6/15/2015 4:37 PM

City Council Packet 117 June 22, 2015



license is generally renewed upon application and payment of the renewal fee, unless there is a hold on the
renewal of the license for violations, objection to renewal by the Michigan Department of Treasury,
dissolution of the licensed corporation, and other such things which would prevent the timely renewal of the
license. If the reason for the hold on the renewal of the license is not resolved by May 1, the sale of
alcoholic beverages must cease until the reason for the hold is resolved and the license is renewed. The
license renewal fee is the same as the license fee. License or renewal fees are not prorated.

A licensee must maintain proof of financial responsibility on file with the MLCC in the amount of at least
$50,000 for security for liability (Dram Shop liability) for an individual who suffers damage or who is
personally injured by a person under the age of 21 or a visibly intoxicated person by reason of the unlawful
selling, giving or furnishing of alcoholic liquor to the person under 21 years of age or the visibly intoxicated
person. The method most often used by licensees to meet this requirement is the purchase of a liquor
liability insurance policy worth at least $50,000. Other acceptable means of complying with this requirement
include depositing $50,000 in cash with the MLCC or obtaining an irrevocable letter of credit which is
pledged to the State of Michigan as first claimant.

A licensee is prohibited from selling alcoholic beverages between the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. of
any day and 2:00 a.m. and 12 noon on Sundays. Pursuant to the Michigan Liquor Control Code of 1998, 12
Noon on Sunday is considered 12 Noon on Sunday, EST, for any licensee located in the central time zone.
Beer and wine may be sold after noon on Sundays without a Sunday Sales Permit unless prohibited by the
county or local government.

A sale or purchase of alcoholic beverages shall be for cash only except for a customer's charge account
with a Specially Designated Merchant who is not a holder of a license authorizing the sale of alcoholic
beverages for consumption on the premises; the sale to an industrial account if the extension of credit does
not exceed 30 days; or a sale to a person holding an authorized credit card from a credit card agency.

A licensee must obtain approval from the MLCC to transfer the license or an interest in the license from one
person to another. This includes the transfer or issuance of stock in a corporation; the transfer or
assignment of a membership interest in limited liability company; and/or the transfer or assignment of a
partnership interest, including the adding or dropping of partners.

A privately held licensed corporation must immediately notify the MLCC, in writing, of changes made in its
officers or directors or of amendments made to the articles of incorporation.

A limited liability company shall immediately notify the MLCC, in writing, of changes made in its managers or
assignees or of amendments made to the articles of organization, operating agreement, or by-laws.

A licensee shall comply with all state and local building, plumbing, zoning, sanitation, and health laws, rules,
and ordinances.

A licensee shall maintain accurate records of purchases and sales of alcoholic beverages for a 4-year
period of time. A licensee shall maintain records sufficient to determine ownership of the licensed business
and to whom the profits or losses of the business accrue for a 4-year period of time.

A licensee shall make the licensed premises available for inspection and search by an MLCC investigator or
law enforcement officer during regular business hours or when the licensed premises are occupied by the
license or a clerk, servant, agent, or employee of the licensee.

A licensee shall sign and frame under transparent material the license(s) and permit document issued by the
MLCC. A licensee shall prominently display the license(s) and permit document in the licensed premises.

A licensee shall not directly, individually, or by a clerk, agent, or servant sell, furnish, or give alcoholic
beverages to a person under the age of 21.

A licensee shall not directly or indirectly, individually, or by a clerk, agent, or servant sell, furnish, or give
alcoholic beverages or to a person who is visibly intoxicated.

State License Search - Specially Designated Merchant License http://www.michigan.gov/statelicensesearch/0,4671,7-180-24786-245050...

5 of 7 6/15/2015 4:37 PM

City Council Packet 118 June 22, 2015



A licensee shall not obtain the license for the use and benefit of a person whose name does not appear on
the license.

A licensee shall not lease, sell, or transfer possession of the licensed premises without the prior written
approval of the MLCC.

A license shall not add or drop any space from the physical structure of the licensed premises without prior
approval of the MLCC.

A licensee shall not close the licensed business for more than 30 days without returning the license to the
Lansing office of the MLCC to be placed into escrow.

A licensee shall not participate in or sponsor any contest that requires the use or consumption of alcoholic
beverages or features alcoholic beverages as a prize in connection with a contest.

An off-premises licensee who is not licensed as an on-premises licensee shall not have any open
containers of alcoholic beverages on the licensed premises unless it is a defective or sample bottle or can;
a returnable container returned by a customer of the off-premises licensee for a refund of the deposit on the
container; or an off premises licensee has obtained approval from the MLCC for open alcoholic beverages
used in the preparation of bakery or deli items by the employees of the off-premises licensee.

An off-premises licensee shall not change the nature of the business for which the off-premises license was
issued without the prior approval of the MLCC.

A licensee or the clerk, servant, agent, or employee of the licensee shall not make payment to the MLCC or
the State of Michigan by any means that will be dishonored by a financial institution for lack of sufficient
funds or for any other reason.

A licensee shall not give away any alcoholic beverages at any time in connection with the licensed
business.

 6.  Fees

$70 Inspection Fee

$100 License Fee

 7.  Appeal Process

If a license application is denied, the aggrieved license applicant may request an appeal hearing. This
request must be made in writing to the Lansing office of the MLCC at 7150 Harris Drive, PO Box 30005,
Lansing, MI 48909 within 20 days from the date of the mailing of the decision of denial.

The Hearings and Appeals Section of the Executive Services Division will notify the applicant of the day,
date, and time of the scheduled appeal hearing. Appeal hearings of licensing decisions are generally held in
the MLCC Lansing office on Tuesdays and in the MLCC Farmington office on Thursdays.

 8.  Public Input Opportunities

The MLCC also considers the opinions of the local residents at the time of review and consideration of the
completed application.

E. Contact Information:

State License Search - Specially Designated Merchant License http://www.michigan.gov/statelicensesearch/0,4671,7-180-24786-245050...

6 of 7 6/15/2015 4:37 PM

City Council Packet 119 June 22, 2015



Michigan.gov Home  Site Map

Policies Michigan News

Copyright 2015 State of Michigan

Contact Us

Creation/Revision Date:

October 12, 2010

State License Search - Specially Designated Merchant License http://www.michigan.gov/statelicensesearch/0,4671,7-180-24786-245050...

7 of 7 6/15/2015 4:37 PM

City Council Packet 120 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 121 June 22, 2015

azettel
Text Box
Bench Donation



City Council Packet 122 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 123 June 22, 2015



City Council Packet 124 June 22, 2015



By John Wisely and Joe Guillen , Detroit Free Press 10:13 a.m. EDT June 12, 2015

An historic new regional water authority serving more than 4 million customers in southeast Michigan was
formalized this morning.

The Great Lakes Water Authority board voted 5-1 in favor of a resolution approving long-term leases of sewer
and water assets owned by the Detroit Water and Sewerage Department at its meeting this morning.

Related: Friday vote could finalize new regional water authority (/story/news/local/michigan/2015/06/10/friday-
vote-finalize-new-regional-water-authority/71047408/)

Approval of the 40-year leases gives the authority control over a system that has been city-run for 180 years.
The authority was created last year as part of Detroit's bankruptcy restructuring. Today's vote came days before a deadline to finalize the deal. A no vote
today would have dissolved the regional authority.

Getting to this point had been contentious at times. Early on, Oakland, Wayne and Macomb counties voiced concern over the amount of information they
were receiving as to how the arrangement would work, among other issue. However, Macomb County had been the mainstay vocal opponent to the deal.

Brian Baker, Macomb County's representative on the board, voted against approving the lease.

Baker raised concerns about costs associated with Detroit's unpaid water bills and whether the new regional operation will end up saving the suburbs
money.

"At the end of the day, the certainties are only negative. We're paying more with too little say," he said. "A bad deal does not help the region."

Gary Brown, one of Detroit's two board members, said he disagreed with Baker's assessment.

"There was never any intent to shift costs to any community and I think this lease has done an outstanding job in ensuring every community, including
Detroit, will be responsible for collections and pulling their own weight," Brown said.

The vote was held at Waterworks Park because it could accommodate more people than a board room at the water department building downtown. Five
out of six votes on the authority's board were required for the lease to be approved.

Under the deal, suburban leaders expect to have a stronger voice in setting water rates for their residents. The city of Detroit will receive $50 million
annual lease payments to help fix its aging infrastructure. In addition, a water assistance fund, expected to be about $4 million the first year, will be
created to help those who are struggling to pay for water regionwide.

Here is what ratepayers throughout the region need to know about the new water authority:

Question: How will rates be affected?

Answer: Water system officials have promised to keep revenue increases to 4% or less annually, though rates can rise faster than that as usage
declines. The switch is expected to slow future rate increases.

Q: What happens to DWSD?

A: It remains a department of the city with responsibility for managing water and sewage sales to Detroit residents and businesses. The DWSD's work
force will shrink from about 1,400 employees to about 500, with 900 shifting to the regional authority, according to Detroit Mayor Mike Duggan's office.

Q: Why is this happening?

A: The deal gives Detroit an annual lease payment of $50 million and the suburbs, where about 75% of the system customers live, will have more say in
the management of the system, including setting rates. The authority was created to help ease the cost of debt and operating the water system as part of
Detroit's bankruptcy restructuring.

Q:Why was the deal negotiated in private?

(Photo: Detroit Free Press file

photo)

Buy Photo

Great Lakes Water Authority OKs lease of Detroit's system http://www.freep.com/story/news/local/michigan/detroit/2015/06/12/regi...

1 of 3 6/12/2015 10:53 AM

City Council Packet 125 June 22, 2015



A: As part of Detroit's bankruptcy, the process was handled in mediation, a court-monitored negotiation process. U.S. District Judge Sean Cox placed a
gag order on the proceedings to promote candid discussions.

Q: What will Detroit do with the $50 million annual payments?

A: The money must be used on water and sewer system improvements within the city limits such as fixing leaking pipes and upgrading plants, including
those which serve the entire system. The money cannot be diverted to the city's general fund for things like police, fire and ambulance service.

Q: How do the suburbs have a stronger voice in water operations?

A: Wayne, Oakland and Macomb counties each have a seat on the six-member board that will run the Great Lakes Water Authority. A fourth member
appointed by the governor represents other counties that use the system like Genesee, Washtenaw and Monroe. Major decisions, such as setting the
budget and issuing debt, require five out of six votes on the board.

Q: What is the advantage to the GLWA over the DWSD?

A: By separating from the cash-strapped city, the new authority expects to earn a better bond rating, which translates into lower borrowing costs. The
regional approach could reduce disputes over rates.

Q: What happens to Highland Park's $25-million debt to the DWSD?

A: As of right now, the debt will likely be spread out over all suburban communities. The system is suing to collect. That case is pending.

Q: How does this affect Detroit's water shutoffs?

A: Probably not much. The city will continue to be responsible for any unpaid bills within the city limits and will likely use shutoffs as a way to force
payment. The creation of the regional water assistance fund, however, should help some avoid shutoffs.

Read or Share this story: http://on.freep.com/1JJnCl3

Great Lakes Water Authority OKs lease of Detroit's system http://www.freep.com/story/news/local/michigan/detroit/2015/06/12/regi...

2 of 3 6/12/2015 10:53 AM

City Council Packet 126 June 22, 2015



To all, 
 
Please see below for the May 2015 monthly activity report: 
 
On 5-1-15, Clandestine lab trained FANG officers responded to Lapeer County to assist the Thumb 
Narcotics Unit with the dismantling of a methamphetamine lab. 
 
On 5-4-15, Clandestine lab trained FANG officers responded to St. Clair County to assist the St. Clair 
County Drug task force with the dismantling of a methamphetamine lab. 
 
On 5-4-15, FANG Officers conducted a controlled purchase of “Crack” using a Confidential Informant 
(CI).  Officers conducted surveillance as the CI went to a motel in the City of Flint and purchased “crack” 
from a male inside.  Intelligence was gathered on the motel room and suspect. 
 
On 5-5-15, Clandestine lab trained FANG officers responded to a motel in Flint Township.  A fire resulted 
from a Clandestine lab inside one of the rooms.  FANG officers dismantled the methamphetamine 
lab.  The investigation is still on going. 
 
On 5-6-15, FANG officers executed a search warrant at a motel room in the City of Flint.  A small amount 
of cocaine was seized from the room.  The suspect was not in the room at the time of the search 
warrant.  The investigation is still on going. 
 
On 5-7-15, FANG officers conducted an undercover prostitution sting at a residence in Mt. Morris 
Township.  The prostitution sting led to a consent search of the home.  Approximately .5 grams of heroin 
were seized from the home.  A male and two females were arrested.  The investigation is still on going. 
 
On 5-13-15, FANG officers assisted the Major Crime Unit by locating a wanted Fugitive at a residence in 
Grand Blanc Township.  It turned into a barricade situation and the MSP ES Team was called in.  The 
subject, who was also wanted for a recent Homicide, eventually surrendered. 
 
On 5-13-15, Clandestine lab trained FANG officers responded to St. Clair County to assist the St. Clair 
County Drug task force with the dismantling of a methamphetamine lab.  
 
On 5-14-15, FANG Officers were conducting surveillance on a known drug dealer in the City of Flint.  A 
traffic stop was later conducted and 2 prescription pills were seized.  A male and female were both 
released pending further investigation. 
 
On 5-14-15, Clandestine lab trained FANG officers responded to Iosco County to assist the STING Drug 
task force with the dismantling of a methamphetamine lab. 
 
On 5-14-15, FANG officers investigated a possible Marijuana grow operation in the City of Burton.  The 
homeowner was cooperative with FANG officers and was determined to be conducting a legal medical 
marijuana grow operation. 
 
On 5-16-15, Clandestine lab trained FANG officers responded to St. Clair County to assist the St. Clair 
County Drug task force with the dismantling of a methamphetamine lab. 
 

City Council Packet 127 June 22, 2015

azettel
Text Box
May FANG Report



On 5-18-15, FANG Officers conducted a controlled purchase of “crack” cocaine using a Confidential 
Informant (CI).  Officers conducted surveillance as the CI went to a residence in the City of Flint and 
purchased “crack” cocaine from a male inside.  Intelligence was gathered on the residence and suspect. 
 
On 5-18-15, FANG officers responded to Port Huron to assist Port Huron P.D. with the package and 
transport of methamphetamine hazardous materials to the MSP methamphetamine hazardous 
materials storage container.   
 
On 5-18-15, FANG officers observed three males walking in the roadway in the city of Flint.  One of the 
males was observed to have the handle of a pistol sticking out of the waistband from the front of his 
shorts.  Officers made contact with the males instructing them to put their hands in the air.  The subject 
with the gun started to put his hands up and then began to move them toward his waist, grabbing the 
gun pulling it out of his waistband yelling, "It's fake...  it's fake!"   He then placed the gun on the 
ground.  The other two subjects were both found to be in possession of double edged knives.  The gun 
was found to be a Crossman airsoft pistol.  The subject with the airsoft pistol was a juvenile and turned 
over to his mother.   
 
On 5-19-15, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of crack from a subject in a parking lot of a 
fast food restaurant in the city of Flint.  The investigation is on-going.  
 
On 5-19-15, FANG officers were conducting surveillance on a residence in the city of Flint after receiving 
tips that a subject was selling HEROIN from there.  Offices verified in LEIN that the suspect did not have 
a driver's license.  Officers observed the suspect drive away from the residence.  A traffic stop was 
conducted by a MSP Trooper.  The suspect was found to be in possession of heroin and lodged in the 
Genesee County Jail. 
 
On 5-20-15, FANG officers received a tip regarding a vehicle driving around with drugs inside a vehicle in 
the city of Flint.  Officers located the vehicle, after observing traffic violations a traffic stop was 
conducted by a MSP Trooper.  27 grams of powder cocaine and 30 grams of crack cocaine were found in 
the vehicle.  Two subjects were lodged at the Flint City Jail. 
 
On 05-20-15, FANG officers received information on the possible location of 2 stolen vehicles.  GAIN was 
contacted and advised that they were familiar with the 2 vehicles and they were stolen reported to 
Grand Blanc City P.D.  FANG officers also received information the stolen vehicles were involved in a 
home invasion in the FLINT CITY.   FANG officers located one of the stolen vehicles in Burton.   FANG and 
GAIN officers set up surveillance on the vehicle.  A traffic stop was initiated when the vehicle left the 
residence in Burton.  These suspects provided officers with the location of the other stolen vehicle in 
Burton.  Officers located this vehicle making contact with the occupant.  A consent search of this 
persons residence revealed property stolen in home invasions in the city of Flint, along with items stolen 
from vehicles in Mundy Twp., Burton, and items taken from a Flint Police officers personal vehicle while 
it was parked at Baker College.   Three subjects were lodged at the Genesee County Jail with follow-up 
interviews and subsequent confessions obtained by GAIN.  
 
On 5-20-15, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of crack cocaine from a suspect in a 
residence in Grand Blanc Twp.  The investigation is on-going. 
 

City Council Packet 128 June 22, 2015



On 5-26-15, FANG officers dismantled/packaged and transported methamphetamine components 
originating from a traffic stop conducted by Troopers from Flint Post.  FANG officers assumed the case, 
conducting interviews of the two arrested subjects that had been lodged at the Genesee County Jail.  
 
On 5-26-15, FANG officers performed a controlled purchase of marijuana from a suspect in the city of 
Flint.  Based on this buy officers obtained and executed a search warrant at the residence on 5-28-
15.  Officers seized marijuana and packaging materials.  Forfeiture proceedings were initiated on 
$1445.00. 
 
On 5-26-15, FANG officers performed a controlled purchase of crack cocaine from a suspect in a 
residence in the city of Flint.  The investigation is on-going. 
 
On 5-27-15, FANG officers made contact with several individuals loitering in front of an apartment 
building in the city of Flint.  Officers had received numerous tips this was an area drugs could be 
purchased easily.  Officers located 7 grams of crack packaged for sale near the group.  Forfeiture 
proceedings were initiated on $1956.00.  This money was found on a subject that was also in possession 
of marijuana packaged for sale.  Two subjects were lodged at the Flint City Jail, one on the fresh charges 
and the other on warrant for assault and battery.  
 
On 5-27-15, FANG officers performed a controlled purchase of crack from a suspect in residence in the 
city of Flint.  The investigation is on-going. 
 
On 5-28-15, FANG officers assisted the Michigan Attorney General - Criminal Division (Internet Crimes 
Against Children Task Force) with executing a search warrant at residence in the city of Flint.  FANG 
officers made forcible entry into the residence, and secured the occupants.  During a search of the 
occupants one subject was found to be in possession of crack cocaine.  FANG officers assumed this drug 
case.   The scene and occupants were then turned over to officers from the Michigan Attorney General’s 
Office reference the original investigation involving child pornography. 
 
On 5-28-15, FANG officers performed a controlled purchase of crack cocaine from a suspect in a 
residence in the city of Flint.  The investigation is on-going.  
 
If anyone has any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to give me a call. 
 
Pat 
 
D/F/Lt. Patrick Richard 
Section Commander-Flint Area Narcotics Group 
Third District Headquarters                                
Michigan State Police 
Mailing Address: 
F.A.N.G.                             
PO Box 614 
Grand Blanc, Mi 48480                          
Office:  810-233-3689 
Cell:  616-260-8583 
FAX:  810-233-7119  
richardp@michigan.gov                             

City Council Packet 129 June 22, 2015

mailto:richardp@michigan.gov

	2015-06-22, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	2015-6-8 June 8 Council Minutes
	FOIA Procedures
	FOIA Summary
	FOIA Fee Form
	Sheet1

	East Letter
	Third Street Agreement
	Third QC to A
	Third QC to B
	Crites Letter
	Tax Sale List
	2015 Tax Sale Central
	2015 Tax Sale East
	2015 Tax Sale West
	AFSCME-POLC
	Supervisors
	Bristol Cut Quote
	Elms Pavethrough Memo
	Elms Pavethrough Plan
	Dye Road Real Estate Auction Contract Revised
	Biddergy - Terms and Conditions from web
	3398 Dye Map
	MERS
	Notification ofApplication for Liquor License9061 Miller Suite 15
	State License Search - Specially Designated Merchant License
	Bench Donation
	Consumers Energy Notice
	Great Lakes Water Authority OKs lease of Detroit's system
	FANG



